
Marysville City Council Meeting 
 

June 25, 2018                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 
 
 
Call to Order 
 
Invocation 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Presentations 
 
Audience Participation 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
1. Approval of the May 15, 2018 Marysville and Lake Stevens City Council Joint 
Meeting Minutes. 
 
9. Approval of the May 29, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes. 
 
10. Approval of the June 4, 2018 City Council Work Session Minutes. 
 
Consent  
 
11. Approval of June 13, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $950,152.02 Paid by EFT 
Transactions and Check Numbers 125146 through 125304. 
  
Review Bids  
 
Public Hearings 
 
New Business 
 
2. Consider Approving of the Supplemental Agreement No. 3, a No-Cost Extension, to 
the City’s Professional Service Agreement with KPG, Inc. 
 
3. Consider Approving the Sunnyside Blvd Water Main (29th Pl NE to Soper Hill Rd) 
Project, Starting the 45-day Lien Filing Period for Project Closeout.  
 
4. Consider Approving a Resolution Amending Procurement Procedures. 
 

1



Marysville City Council Meeting 
 

June 25, 2018                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 
 
5. Consider Approving the Community Beautification Program Grant Review 
Committee’s Recommendation on Award Funding. 
 
6. Consider Approving an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Kenmore for Outdoor 
Video Services.  
 
7. Consider Approving an Agreement with the State of Washington Department of 
Ecology for a $25,000.00 Grant to help pay for the Update to the Shoreline Master 
Program. 
 
8. Consider Approving a Resolution for the Mother Nature’s Window Park Project #18-
2176 as required by the Recreation Conservation Office.  
 
12. Consider Approving the Two Easement Encroachment Agreements for a Garage 
and a Gazebo between the City of Marysville and Trevor and Julie Trueax.  
 
Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Staff Business 
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Adjournment/Recess 
 
 
Executive Session  
 
A.    Litigation 
 
B.    Personnel 
 
C.    Real Estate 
 
Reconvene 
 
Adjournment 
 
Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible meetings 
for people with disabilities.  Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (360) 363-8000 or 
1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 (TDD Relay) two business days prior to 
the meeting date if any special accommodations are needed for this meeting. 
 

2



Index #1
 

3



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 1 of 7 

 
 

 
JOINT MEETING MINUTES 

MARYSVILLE AND LAKE STEVENS CITY COUNCILS 
Tuesday, May 15, 2018 

Marysville City Hall 
1049 State Avenue, Marysville, WA 

 
 

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance: 
 
Marysville Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Roll Call: 
 
Marysville Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Marysville Mayor: Jon Nehring 
 
Marysville Council: Mark James, Tom King, Steve Muller, Kamille Norton 

(President), Rob Toyer, and Jeff Vaughan 
 
Absent: Michael Stevens 
 
Lake Stevens Mayor: John Spencer 
 
Lake Stevens Council: Gary Petershagen, Brett Gailey, Kim Daughtry, Todd Welch, 

Rauchel McDaniel, Marcus Tageant, Kurt Hilt 
 
Also Present: Marysville: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, 

Finance Director Sandy Langdon, City Engineer Jeff Laycock, 
Asst. Public Works Director, Kari Chenault, City Attorney Jon 
Walker, Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen, Community 
Development Director Dave Koenig, and Recording Secretary 
Laurie Hugdahl. 
 
Lake Stevens: Public Works Director Eric Durpos, Community 
Development Director Russ Wright, City Clerk Kathy Pugh, 
Finance Director Barb Stevens, City Administrator Gene Brazel 

 
Introductions of Council and Staff:  Councilmembers and Mayors made brief introductions. 
 
 

Item 1 - 1

4



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 2 of 7 

Approval of Agenda: 
 
Motion made by Marysville Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Norton to 
approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Motion made and seconded by Lake Stevens Councilmembers to approve the agenda. Motion 
passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Discussion Items: 
 
A. City Capital Project Updates 

 
CAO Hirashima introduced the agenda which revolved around growth and the proposed 
Interlocal Agreement. City Engineer Jeff Laycock reviewed Marysville capital projects. 
He reviewed key transportation projects in South Marysville including: 

1. I-5 NB Peak Hour use lane and SR 529 Interchange 
2. First Street Bypass 
3. SR9/SR92 Break in Access 
4. 35th to 40th Street NE Arterial 
5. Roundabouts at 87th/35th and 87th/40th 
6. Intersection Improvements at Soper Hill Rd, Sunnyside Blvd and 71st Avenue NE 
7. 83rd Avenue NE and Soper Hill Road Intersection Improvements 

 
Utility projects in South Marysville: 

1. Sunnyside well treatment facility 
2. Highway 9 well 
3. Zone 560 booster pump station 
4. 83rd Avenue NE Water Main Improvements 
5. Whiskey Ridge Reservoir 
6. Whiskey Ridge Sewer Lift Station 

 
Community Development Director Russ Wright distributed a memorandum regarding 
Lake Stevens’ commercial and residential development, civic projects, recreational 
opportunities, the ILA and capital projects, including: 
 
Transportation projects 

1. SR9/SR204 Intersection improvements 
2. Village Way – new road into Frontier Village  
3. 20th Street SE widening 
4. New grid roads to support the 20th Street SE Corridor Subarea Plan 
5. Rebuild Main Street to support the Downtown Lake Stevens Subarea Plan 
6. South Lake Stevens widening and pedestrian improvements 
7. Safe Routes to school grant on 91st 

 
Stormwater 

1. Decant Facility 
2. Regional Stormwater Pond to support the 20th Street SE Corridor Subarea Plan 

 
Parks 

1. Rebuild and expand North Cove Park to support the Downtown Lake Stevens 
Subarea Plan 

2. Rebuild Lundeen Park 

Item 1 - 2

5



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 3 of 7 

3. Reconstruct Frontier Heights Park 
4. Complete Phase 1 improvements to Eagle Ridge Park 
5. Construct Cavelero Park in coordination with Snohomish County 
6. Re-establish ballfields on 20th Street SE 

 
Civic Buildings 

• Build a new Police Station at Chapel Hill 
• Develop a Community/Conference Center downtown 
• Coordinate with special interest groups to relocate the museum, rowing shell 

house, library and American Legion Veteran’s Memorial  
 

B. Development and Growth in Marysville and Lake Stevens 
 
Marysville Community Development Director Koenig reviewed development and growth 
in Marysville. He discussed population, development, housing, and employment 
numbers. Community Development Director Wright discussed population, residential 
development and commercial development numbers for Lake Stevens.  
 

C. Recreational Opportunities in the Area, Including Abutting Powerline Trails 
 
Marysville Public Works Director Nielsen and Community Development Director Koenig 
reviewed recreational opportunities in Marysville including: Ebey Waterfront Park 
Expansion, Ebey Waterfront Trail, Bayview Ridge Trail, Centennial Trail Connector, and 
Whiskey Ridge Trail.  
 
Community Development Director Wright reviewed recreational opportunities and 
focused on the redevelopment and expansion of North Cove Park. He also discussed 
the Centennial Trail and the Powerline Trail. Mayor Spencer mentioned the boat 
launches at the lake which are extensively used. The lake is very heavily used, 
especially when the weather is nice.  
 

D. Interlocal Agreement re Soper Hill Intersection Improvement 
 

CAO Hirashima introduced the Interlocal Agreement. She reviewed the purpose of the 
agreement including: developing standards for the Soper Hill Rd corridor with the City of 
Lake Stevens jurisdiction; establishing the responsibility of each agency as it relates to 
design, permitting and construction of the corridor; establishing maintenance 
responsibilities of the corridor; and coordinating future growth. 
 
Marysville and Lake Stevens staffs have been working together on the ILA since August 
2016. CAO Hirashima reviewed the key points of the ILA including: 

• Marysville would be responsible for funding and design of 83rd Avenue 
Roundabout and frontage improvements between 83rd and 87th Avenue NE. 

• Marysville development would be responsible for 87th Avenue roundabout and 
frontage improvements. 

• Lake Stevens would retain the lead agency and permitting authority/approval. 
• Projects to comply with Lake Stevens’ ordinances and engineering design and 

development standards. 
• The improvements would be conveyed to Lake Stevens following the 

construction. 
• Marysville to construct improvements within two years of agreement. 

Item 1 - 3

6



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 4 of 7 

• Marysville to maintain 83rd Avenue project through term of agreement or 15 
years.  

 
Coordination of future growth was also discussed including: 

• Traffic - SR 9 and Soper Hill Road; SR9 and SR92 intersection; and other 
roadway issues 

• Parks - Future park needs in Sunnyside/Soper Hill area 
• Schools - Both cities have adopted Lake Stevens School District Capital Facilities 

Plan to support Impact Fee Collection 
 
Discussion: 
 
Mayor Nehring thanked both staffs for the excellent overview of what is happening in the 
two communities.  
 
Lake Stevens Mayor Spencer also thanked the staffs for the work they have done. He 
spoke to the importance of coming to agreement on future plans.  
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Tageant commented on Lake Stevens’ concerns related 
to roads and traffic in the corridor.  
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Hilt expressed concern about the unpredicted traffic 
impacts and insufficient recreational opportunities for residents in that area. He stated 
that Marysville would get the benefit of the growth while Lake Stevens would bear the 
brunt of the development. He also expressed concern about HOA-maintained parks 
which are not truly parks. He noted that this area of the city is landlocked so it is 
important that kids have recreational opportunities. He expressed concern about growth 
in general and the importance of walkability and having a safe and healthy community.  
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember McDaniel spoke to the positive direction of the meeting 
and discussions. She expressed concern about agreeing to an ILA agreement without 
seeing a draft first or discussing the mitigation. She agreed that Marysville would be 
getting most of the benefit while Lake Stevens would be taking most of the burden. 
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Gailey concurred with previous comments. He also 
expressed concern that Lake Stevens’ police would have to respond to Soper Hill even 
though it would be primarily Marysville citizens using the road. 
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Welch said he would be concerned with how the Soper 
Hill Road turns out and the safety of the community. He spoke in support of the direction 
they are going.  
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Daughtry asked if there would be an ILA between the two 
police departments for mutual response in the commercial areas.  
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Petershagen expressed concern about the impact on 
Lake Stevens from increased traffic to schools. He stated that there needs to be 
recognition of the fact that this isn’t a typical traffic situation. He noted that Lake Stevens 
is already built out in Soper Hill so Lake Stevens wouldn’t be impacting anything. He 
solicited solutions from Marysville because they would be the ones having an impact on 
Lake Stevens’ secondary roads. He commented that these are big items and shouldn’t 
be pushed off to later. He urged the staffs to keep working on this. 

Item 1 - 4

7



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 5 of 7 

 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Daughtry concurred with the tremendous impacts on 
increased traffic related to schools in the area, especially on his street. 
 
Marysville Councilmember Muller commented that the City of Marysville doesn’t create 
the school boundaries and doesn’t have control over those. Marysville supports Lake 
Stevens’ school fees. Marysville is also offering to pay for the entire project with 
pedestrian improvements. He would like to hear specific suggestions from Lake Stevens 
related to safety and maintenance. There was discussion about options for ownership 
and maintenance.  
 
Regarding parks, Marysville Councilmember Muller stated that Marysville is committed 
to building its section of the Powerline Trail to Soper Hill Road. This is in the City’s Parks 
Plan. Mayor Spencer stated that Lake Stevens is prepared to begin a conceptual 
analysis of the trail from Soper Hill Road to the south. They would then work with 
Marysville regarding funding. Mayor Spencer noted that the subdivision parks are great 
for young children, but the two jurisdictions should look at ways to create ballfields or 
covered basketball courts for young adults to use. Lake Stevens wants to make sure 
mitigation is going towards something that will take care of the population in that area.  
 
Marysville Councilmember Muller disagreed with Lake Stevens’ assumption that the 
10,000 people would all go to Lake Stevens for shopping. He commented on the pass-
through traffic in Marysville of people coming to Costco, the 172nd Street corridor, I-5, 
etc. He noted that Marysville is willing to invest heavily in a street that benefits the 
residents in that area. He spoke to the importance of having an Interlocal Agreement 
that addresses quality of life issues and letting Marysville take care of the cost of the 
roads while giving Lake Stevens a voice in what that should look like. 
 
Lake Stevens Councilmember Gailey explained that they also have concerns about 
increased traffic on roads in the area because of the expected increased school 
population. Even though Soper Hill Road would be improved with Marysville’s proposal, 
other roads would also be impacted. He asked how those issues would be mitigated 
since they would be a result of Marysville citizens in schools in Lake Stevens. 
Councilmember Muller replied that there are models to determine the school impact fees 
and corridor improvements needed as a direct result of development.  
 
Marysville Public Works Director Nielsen reviewed model results and also some issues 
with the model due to other improvements that will be completed in the future. He thinks 
there will be a shift in the traffic patterns as a result of tolling proposals on the Highway 2 
Trestle and the 1st Street Bypass to 529. 
 
Lake Stevens Mayor Spencer spoke to the value of continued conversations surrounding 
parks and recreational opportunities.  
 
Marysville Mayor Nehring spoke in support of the vision of parks and sports facilities, but 
wasn’t sure how it could be included in this Interlocal Agreement. He asked for specific 
items Marysville could include in the ILA. 
 
Lake Stevens Mayor Spencer replied that they are looking for some strong language 
about moving forward with recreational facilities and the powerline trail to provide options 
for bicycling and pedestrians. Councilmember Tageant would like to see more of a 
commitment to that. Councilmember Gailey commented that they envision a trail with 

Item 1 - 5

8



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 6 of 7 

walking/biking down the middle and an option for recreational opportunities along the 
sides in some areas.  
 
Marysville Councilmember Toyer asked about Lake Stevens’ vision for the powerline 
trails. Lake Stevens Councilmembers commented generally on their desire to provide 
recreational opportunities for the citizens.  
 
Marysville Councilmember Norton commented that there are a lot of unknowns about 
parks that they would not be able to figure out tonight with regard to issues such as 
funding, maintenance, and location. It might be possible for the cities to look at 
partnering on something like design work in the future. For this discussion regarding an 
Interlocal Agreement, she believes that focusing on the road project would be a better 
first step. She referred to Lake Stevens’ concerns about the traffic coming from the 
growth in Marysville and pointed out that there are also some positive things that result 
from the growth such as revenue from shopping and more students in their schools.  
 
Marysville Councilmember Vaughan commented as the elder council member. He 
reviewed some history of a Lake Stevens and Marysville Council meeting many years 
ago where they discussed the growth and commercial development in the area they are 
talking about tonight. At that time, like tonight, Marysville approached Lake Stevens 
about some things that the City was willing to do to work together, but that was 
unsuccessful. Now Marysville feels that there is another important opportunity for the 
future and is trying to hash out a variety of things. He thinks it is unfortunate that the two 
Councils have not been more successful at working together. He suggested that the two 
communities could meet regularly to try to improve their working relationship.  
 
Marysville Councilmember King stated he lives on Sunnyside Blvd and pointed out that 
the traffic goes both ways. He is thrilled about plans for a trail that will tie both 
communities. Parks and open spaces are important to him.  
 
Lake Stevens Mayor Spencer spoke to the need to get an ILA in place because of the 
development that is happening in Marysville. He doesn’t think there is any question of 
design on the road. He suggested that Lake Stevens could come back to Marysville with 
some specific suggestions. Mayor Nehring agreed. He thought that the powerline trails 
seemed like the most logical place to start.  
 
Marysville Councilmember Muller asked about creating a regional park agreement 
instead of including it in the ILA. Mayor Spencer thought that would be okay, but noted 
that the ILA would hinge on it.  
 
Marysville Mayor Nehring noted he was not hearing any disagreement on the details of 
the road project. He asked if there was a way to get that done without drawing in 
something additional. Mayor Spencer replied that Lake Stevens wants a commitment 
regarding parks, but they don’t need specificity.  
 
Marysville Councilmember James commented that the ILA for the road makes sense 
and will benefit both communities. He suggested agreeing on that. The other issues are 
important, but they don’t need to be connected to the ILA related to the road. He spoke 
in support of meeting more often to develop a better working relationship.  

 

Item 1 - 6

9



5/15/18 Joint City Council – Marysville and Lake Stevens Page 7 of 7 

Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 
 
 
 
       
Jon Nehring, Marysville Mayor 

 
 
       
John Spencer, Lake Stevens Mayor 

  
  

 
 
       
Kathy Pugh, Lake Stevens City Clerk 

 

Item 1 - 7

10



Index #9
 

11



May 29, 2018 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:00 p.m. 
Approval of the Agenda Approved 
Committee Reports  
Presentations  
Volunteer of the Month: Roger Gable Continued 
Criminal Justice Tax Communication Plan Presented 
Introduction of New Human Resources Director Presented 
Audience Participation  
Approval of Minutes   
Approval of the May 7, 2018 City Council Work Session Minutes. Approved 
Approval of the May 14, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes. Approved 
Consent Agenda  
Approval of the May 4, 2018 Payroll in the Amount of $1,910,619.44, Paid 
by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 31499 through 31530. 

Approved 

Approval of the May 9, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $645,671.96, Paid 
by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 124462 through 124609 with 
Check Number 124315 Voided.   

Approved 

Approval of the May 16, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $523,929.42 Paid 
by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 124610 through 124737. 

Approved 

Approval of the May 18, 2018 Payroll in the Amount of $1,045,373.82, 
Paid by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 31532 through 31571 with 
a Direct Deposit Voided and Reissued with Check Number 31531. 

Approved 

Approval of the May 23, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $462.131.76, Paid 
by EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 124738 through 124881 with 
Check Number 124201 Voided. 

Approved 

Review Bids  
Consider Awarding the 2018 Pavement Preservation Program Contract 
with Cadman Materials, Inc. in the Amount of $1,214,328.60 including 
Washington State Sales Tax and Approve a Management Reserve of 
$121,432.86 for a Total Allocation of $1,335,761.46. 

Approved 

Public Hearings  
New Business  
Consider Approving the 2018 Strawberry Festival Permit Proposal and 
Authorize the Extension of the Strawberry Festival Master 
Permit/Agreement for 2018. 

Approved 

Consider Approving the Application for the Relay for Life of Snohomish 
County to Conduct a Special Event on July 14 and 15, 2018, including the 
Street Closure of 7th Street between Alder Avenue and Quinn Avenue on 
July 14, 2018 as Requested by the Applicant. 

Approved 

Consider Approving the Decant Facility Addition Project, Starting the 45-
day Lien Filing Period for Project Closeout 

Approved 

Consider Approving the Recovery Contract with Summit Development of 
Washington, LLC for Utility Construction Costs. (Sewer Main for the Plat 
of Kenley East).   

Approved  
Recovery Contract 

No. 297 
Consider Approving a Resolution Declaring Certain Technology Items of Approved 

Item 9 - 1

12



May 29, 2018 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Personal Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale and Disposal 
thereof.   

Resolution No. 2442 

Consider Approving a Resolution Declaring Certain Fleet Items of 
Personal Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale and Disposal 
thereof.   

Approved 
Resolution No. 2443 

Consider Approving an Ordinance Amending Section 5.02.140 of the 
Municipal Code Setting Penalties for Violations of the Business Licensing 
Code. 

Approved  
Ordinance No. 3097 

Consider Approving a Resolution for the Olympic View Park Project #16-
1843 as Required by the Recreation Conservation Office.   

Approved 
Resolution No. 2444 

Legal  
Mayor’s Business  
Staff Business  
Call on Councilmembers  
Adjournment 7:46 p.m. 
Executive Session 7:55 p.m. 
Litigation – One pending litigation item No Action 
Adjournment 8:00 p.m. 

 

Item 9 - 2

13



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 7 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

 
Regular Meeting 

May 29, 2018 
 
 

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance. Pastor Greg Kanehan gave the invocation. 
 
Roll Call 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Jon Nehring 
 
Council: Mark James, Tom King, Kamille Norton (President), 

Michael Stevens, Rob Toyer, and Jeff Vaughan 
 
Absent: Steve Muller 
 
Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, Finance 

Director Sandy Langdon, Police Chief Rick Smith, City 
Attorney Jon Walker, City Engineer Jeff Laycock, 
Community Development Director Dave Koenig, Fire Chief 
Martin McFalls, Communications Officer Connie Mennie, 
and Recording Secretary Laurie Hugdahl.  

 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Committee Reports  
 
Councilmember King reported on the LEOFF 1 Board met and reviewed one claim. He 
also reported on the EMS Committee meeting where they reviewed and approved the 
billings for the month. 
 
Presentations 
 
A.  Volunteer of the Month: Roger Gable  

Item 9 - 3

14



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 

 
Not held. 
 
B.  Criminal Justice Tax Communication Plan  
 
Connie Mennie, Communications Officer, reviewed the plan for public communications 
and FAQs regarding the ballot measure in August.  
 
C. Introduction of New Human Resources Director 
 
CAO Hirashima introduced Terri Lester, the new Human Resources Manager who 
reviewed a bit of her background. 
 
Audience Participation  
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.)  
 
1.  Approval of the May 7, 2018 City Council Work Session Minutes.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember King, to 
approve the May 7, 2018 City Council Work Session Minutes. Motion passed 
unanimously (6-0). 
 
11.  Approval of the May 14, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember King, seconded by Councilmember James, to approve 
the May 14, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Consent   
 
2.  Approval of the May 4, 2018 Payroll in the Amount of $1,910,619.44, Paid by 

EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 31499 through 31530.  
 
3.  Approval of the May 9, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $645,671.96, Paid by EFT 

Transactions and Check Numbers 124462 through 124609 with Check Number 
124315 Voided.   

 
12.  Approval of the May 16, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $523,929.42 Paid by EFT 

Transactions and Check Numbers 124610 through 124737.  
 
13.  Approval of the May 18, 2018 Payroll in the Amount of $1,045,373.82, Paid by 

EFT Transactions and Check Numbers 31532 through 31571 with a Direct 
Deposit Voided and Reissued with Check Number 31531.  

  
14.  Approval of the May 23, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $462.131.76, Paid by EFT 

Transactions and Check Numbers 124738 through 124881 with Check Number 
124201 Voided.  

Item 9 - 4

15



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to 
approve Consent Agenda items 2, 3, 12, 13, and 14. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Review Bids   
 
4.  Consider Awarding the 2018 Pavement Preservation Program Contract with 

Cadman Materials, Inc. in the Amount of $1,214,328.60 including Washington 
State Sales Tax and Approve a Management Reserve of $121,432.86 for a Total 
Allocation of $1,335,761.46.  

 
City Engineer Jeff Laycock reviewed the bid results for the pavement preservation 
program.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign and execute the 2018 Pavement Preservation Program 
Contract with Cadman Materials, Inc. in the Amount of $1,214,328.60 including 
Washington State Sales Tax and Approve a Management Reserve of $121,432.86 for a 
Total Allocation of $1,335,761.46. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Public Hearings  
 
New Business  
 
5.  Consider Approving the 2018 Strawberry Festival Permit Proposal and Authorize 

the Extension of the Strawberry Festival Master Permit/Agreement for 2018.   
 
Director Ballew reviewed the 2018 proposal for the 87th year of the Strawberry Festival.  
 
Councilmember King recused himself from this item. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Norton, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
approve the 2018 Strawberry Festival Permit Proposal and Authorize the Extension of 
the Strawberry Festival Master Permit/Agreement for 2018. Motion passed (5-0) with 
Councilmember King abstaining. 
 
Councilmember King returned to the meeting. 
 
6.  Consider Approving the Application for the Relay for Life of Snohomish County to 

Conduct a Special Event on July 14 and 15, 2018, including the Street Closure of 
7th Street between Alder Avenue and Quinn Avenue on July 14, 2018 as 
Requested by the Applicant.   

 
Director Koenig reviewed details of the Relay for Life event on July 14 and 15. Staff is 
recommending approval of this application.  
 

Item 9 - 5

16



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 

Motion made by Councilmember James, seconded by Councilmember King, to approve 
the Application for the Relay for Life of Snohomish County to Conduct a Special Event 
on July 14 and 15, 2018, including the Street Closure of 7th Street between Alder 
Avenue and Quinn Avenue on July 14, 2018 as Requested by the Applicant. Motion 
passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
7.  Consider Approving the Decant Facility Addition Project, Starting the 45-day Lien 

Filing Period for Project Closeout.  
 
City Engineer Laycock reviewed details of this project.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember King, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve the Decant Facility Addition Project, Starting the 45-day Lien Filing Period for 
Project Closeout. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
8.  Consider Approving the Recovery Contract with Summit Development of 

Washington, LLC for Utility Construction Costs. (Sewer Main for the Plat of 
Kenley East).   

 
Director Koenig reviewed this development by Summit Development. He explained that 
this contract would allow recovery of sewer costs for this development.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to 
approve Recovery Contract No. 297. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
9.  Consider Approving a Resolution Declaring Certain Technology Items of 

Personal Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale and Disposal thereof.   
 
Worth Norton explained that these are extra larger servers which have been replaced 
by virtual servers.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember King, to 
approve Resolution No. 2442. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
10.  Consider Approving a Resolution Declaring Certain Fleet Items of Personal 

Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale and Disposal thereof.   
 
City Engineer Laycock explained that these vehicles are being surplussed.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
approve Resolution No. 2443. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
15.  Consider Approving an Ordinance Amending Section 5.02.140 of the Municipal 

Code Setting Penalties for Violations of the Business Licensing Code.  
 

Item 9 - 6

17



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 

City Attorney Walker discussed issues surrounding business licensing violations. This 
ordinance would make it a criminal penalty for people who continue operating their 
businesses after their business license has been suspended or revoked. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember King, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to approve 
Ordinance No. 3097. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
16.  Consider Approving a Resolution for the Olympic View Park Project #16-1843 as 

Required by the Recreation Conservation Office.   
 
Director Ballew explained this would authorize the City’s application for these funds.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Stevens, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to 
approve Resolution No. 2444. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Mayor Nehring: 

• He thanked Commander Dan Brumbaugh and American Legion Post 178 for 
putting on a very nice Memorial Day event at the cemetery.  

• PSRC Annual Meeting is in Seattle on Thursday. 
• Healthy Communities Challenge Day will be on Saturday. 
• Historical Society Museum one-year anniversary celebration will be held on 

Sunday. 
• He thanked everyone who participated in the volunteer appreciation event last 

week at the Opera House. 
• He, Kevin Nielsen, and Jeff Laycock followed up with John White about 

connecting the flyover at 156th to the 156th Interchange Project. This will allow the 
use of state money as matching funds for the federal grant application process. 

 
Staff Business 
 
Chief Smith had no comments. 
 
Sandy Langdon had no comments. 
 
Jon Walker stated the need for an Executive Session to discuss one pending litigation 
item expected to take five minutes with no action.  
 
Dave Koenig reported that that new Toyota dealership will be having its grand opening 
on July 11-14. 
 
Chief McFalls expressed appreciation for the open house and engine dedication 
ceremony which Councilmember James and Mayor Nehring attended. He expressed 

Item 9 - 7

18



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 

appreciation to the Council for allowing them to make this purchase and use it for the 
community. 
 
Jim Ballew: 

• The new spray park opened over the weekend to the delight of many families. 
The new barbecue area was in heavy use all weekend. 

• On Thursday there will be three dance showcases.  
• Healthy Communities Challenge Day will be on Saturday from 10-2. There are 87 

vendors, and a high turnout is expected. Thanks to everyone who helped put this 
on. 

 
Jeff Laycock: 

• The Public Works Committee meeting this week is cancelled. The next meeting 
will be on June 29. 

• I-5 paving is set to resume beginning tonight. 
• US 2 trestle will be closed beginning this weekend. 

 
Gloria Hirashima had no comments. 
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Jeff Vaughan commented that he has spent a lot of time with family at city parks over 
the last several weeks. Things are looking great, and everyone has been very 
impressed with the parks. 
 
Mark James: 

• He attended the fire engine dedication on May 16. 
• He attended the annual meeting and award ceremony for Economic Alliance 

Snohomish County on May 17. He reviewed recipients of the awards.  
• He attended the Snohomish County Cities membership meeting where Roger 

Millar, WSDOT Secretary of Transportation, made a presentation regarding the 
growth expected in the area. 

 
Tom King: 

• He attended the engine christening on behalf of the Fire Board, the Economic 
Alliance award and luncheon, and the First Financial Northwest Bank grand 
opening up at Smokey Point. 

• The Strawberry Festival float went to the Spokane Lilac Festival where they got 
the Grand Marshal Award. This weekend they went to New Westminster to the 
Hyack Festival where they received two more awards: the Favorite Float and the 
Mayor’s Award.  

 
Michael Stevens: 

• He is looking forward to summer in Marysville. 
• He noted he would be absent on June 4 and requested an excused absence. 

 

Item 9 - 8

19



DRAFT 

 
5/29/18 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Rob Toyer had no comments. 
 
Kamille Norton gave an update on the RFA committee meeting where they had a 
presentation on the Fire Benefit Charge. The Committee will be planning on an April 
election date.  
 
Adjournment 
 
Council recessed at 7:46 p.m. for five minutes before reconvening in Executive Session 
to discuss one pending litigation item expected to take five minutes with no action. 
 
Reconvenement 
 
Council reconvened at 7:55 p.m. in Executive Session.  
 
Executive Session  
 
A. Litigation – one item 
 
B.  Personnel  
 
C.  Real Estate  
 
Executive Session ended and reconvened into public meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Mayor 
Jon Nehring 

Item 9 - 9

20



Index #10
 

21



DRAFT 

 
6/4/18 City Council Work Session Minutes 

Page 1 of 5 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

 
Work Session 

June 4, 2018 
 
 

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Jon Nehring 
 
Council: Mark James, Tom King, Steve Muller, Kamille Norton 

(President), Rob Toyer, and Jeff Vaughan 
 
Absent: Michael Stevens 
 
Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, Finance 

Director Sandy Langdon, Police Chief Rick Smith, City 
Attorney Jon Walker, Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen, 
Parks Director Jim Ballew, Community Development 
Director Dave Koenig, Fire Chief Martin McFalls, and 
Recording Secretary Laurie Hugdahl.  

 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember James, to 
excuse the absence of Councilmember Stevens. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
suspend normal Council rules in order to take action on a salvage issue. Motion passed 
unanimously (6-0). 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember James, to 
approve the agenda. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Committee Reports  
 
None 

Item 10 - 1

22



DRAFT 

 
6/4/18 City Council Work Session Minutes 

Page 2 of 5 

 
Presentations 
 
Consent 
 
1.  Approval of the May 30, 2018 Claims in the Amount of $584,844.49 Paid by EFT 

Transactions and Check Numbers 124882 through 125026 with Check Number 
101313 Voided.  

 
Review Bids 
 
Public Hearings  
 
2.  Consider Conducting a Public Hearing on June 11, 2018 regarding the Six-Year 

Transportation Improvement Program (2019-2024) and, based on Staff 
Presentation, Public Testimony, and Council Deliberations, and Consider a 
Resolution Adopting a Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan (2019-2024) 
for the City of Marysville. 

 
Director Nielsen reviewed this item. There were no comments or questions. 
 
New Business 
 
3.  Consider the Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Services 

Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc. to Extend the Term of the Agreement. 
 
Director Nielsen explained that this relates to a test well at Highway 9. It covers the 
operational strategy to get a picture of how all the sources fit together.  
 
4.  Consider the Grant Agreement Authorizing the City’s Application for Grant 

Funding in the Amount of $3,000 through the Office of Secretary of State, 
Archives and Records Management Division.  

 
Finance Director Langdon explained that the City was awarded a grant in the amount of 
$3,000 from the State related to software for records management.  
 
5.  Consider the Revised Local Agency Federal Aid Project Prospectus and Local 

Agency Agreement Supplement No. 2 with WSDOT for Efficient Use of Grant 
Funds for the Citywide Intersection Improvement Project. 

 
Director Nielsen explained that this helps to move projects from design phase to 
construction phase.  
 
6.  Consider the Intergovernmental Agreement with Snohomish County for Diversion 

Center Participation. 
 

Item 10 - 2

23



DRAFT 

 
6/4/18 City Council Work Session Minutes 

Page 3 of 5 

Chief Smith explained that this would cover the City’s participation in the Diversion 
Center and relates to the embedded social worker position. There are minor incidental 
costs involved.  
 
Councilmember Norton asked who would be the city administrator for this. Mayor 
Nehring explained that it would be Commander Thomas if necessary. Councilmember 
Norton asked what the Diversion Center limits would be for Marysville. Chief Smith did 
not have those numbers. He thought that would be determined after they see how it is 
being utilized.  
 
7.  Consider Approving a Resolution Declaring Certain Property Located along 1st 

Street to be Surplus and Authorizing its Disposition. 
 
City Attorney Walker explained that the City was approached by neighbors and other 
entities who would like to take some materials from a demolition site. This would save 
the City disposal costs and would create good will. The Public Works Director would be 
given discretion to decide to whom and how it will be disbursed. 
 
Councilmember Vaughan asked about any risk or liability concerns related to items that 
might be salvaged. Director Nielsen explained that certain types of material will be 
stockpiled for people to take, but if there is anything hazardous it will be put in the 
dumpster.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember King, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to approve 
Resolution No. 2445. Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Mayor Nehring: 

• He thanked Parks, Fire, and the Police Department for their work on the Healthy 
Communities Challenge Day.  

• He, Councilmember Muller, and Councilmember King attended the Historical 
Society’s one year celebration of their museum. He especially enjoyed their new 
interactive display.  

• He and Councilmember James attended PSRC General Assembly. Executive 
Somers was elected to serve another year as Chair. 

 
Staff Business 
 
Chief Smith had no comments. 
 
Chief McFalls had no comments. 
 

Item 10 - 3

24



DRAFT 

 
6/4/18 City Council Work Session Minutes 

Page 4 of 5 

Kevin Nielsen reviewed the new Highway 2 closures have new dates which will be: 
June 22-25, 29-July 2, July 13-16, July 20-23, and August 4-August 6. He reported that 
the conduit for the ITS traffic system has gone in at the on-ramp northbound at 4th but 
there is no meter going in at this time.  
 
Dave Koenig had no comments. 
 
Sandy Langdon gave an update on the bond sale which was sold at a premium. It will 
be finalized on the June 20.  
 
Jim Ballew: 

• Challenge Day was a hit. Thanks to everyone for coming. He commended the 
high school football teams for helping to set up and take down. He commended 
Andrea Kingsford for organizing this and the Marysville Together Community 
Coalition. They estimate that 3000 people were in attendance. 

• This weekend is the beginning of Strawberry Festival with Kids Day on Saturday. 
• Thanks to Costco for donating about $6,000-7,000 in plants for the golf course 

and about $30,000 overall plants to the City.  
• Councilmember James asked about providing additional parking at the golf 

course. Director Ballew replied that the parking is efficient for a large event. For 
extremely large events, they are able to work with the church to use their lot.  

 
Jon Walker stated the need for an Executive Session to discuss one item related to the 
lease of real estate expected to last five minutes with possible action if Council chooses 
to waive rules.  
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Gloria Hirashima had no comments. 
 
Steve Muller expressed appreciation for the document Connie Mennie prepared 
regarding the tax information. He suggested that they clarify that it doesn’t apply to cars 
and some other things.  
 
Rob Toyer had no comments.  
 
Steve Vaughan had no comments.  
 
Tom King: 

• He attended the Washington Fire Commissioners Association meeting and 
seminar in Chelan for two days. 

• The Strawberry Festival banners look good around the City. 
• He attended a nice open house at the Historical Society museum 

 
Mark James had no comments.  
 

Item 10 - 4

25



DRAFT 

 
6/4/18 City Council Work Session Minutes 

Page 5 of 5 

Kamille Norton commented that the bond sale was thrilling. She enjoyed seeing how it 
all happened.  
 
Adjournment 
 
Council recessed at 7:27 p.m. for five minutes before reconvening in Executive Session 
to discuss one item related to the lease of real estate expected to last five minutes with 
possible action if Council chooses to waive rules. 
 
Reconvenement 
 
Council reconvened at 7:32 p.m. in Executive Session.  
 
Executive Session  
 
A. Litigation  
 
B.  Personnel  
 
C.  Real Estate – one item 
 
Executive Session ended and Public Meeting reconvened at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Toyer, seconded by Councilmember Norton, to waive 
the Council’s rules to allow action on proposed lease. Motion passed unanimously (6-
0). 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember James, to 
authorize the Mayor to sign the lease agreement with Maryfest for 1408 1st Street. 
Motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Mayor 
Jon Nehring 

Item 10 - 5

26



Index #11
 

27



Item 11 - 1

28



Item 11 - 2

29



Item 11 - 3

30



Item 11 - 4

31



Item 11 - 5

32



Item 11 - 6

33



Item 11 - 7

34



Item 11 - 8

35



Item 11 - 9

36



Index #2
 

37



Item 2 - 1

38



Item 2 - 2

39



Item 2 - 3

40



Index #3
 

41



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: June 25th, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Project Acceptance - Sunnyside Blvd Water Main (29th Pl NE to Soper Hill Rd) 

PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Adam Benton, Project Engineer \ \ l-
"' DEPARTMENT: 

Engineering 

ATTACHMENTS: I 
Notice of Physical Completion Letter 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

40220594.563000, WR&R NIA 

SUMMARY: 
The Sunnyside Blvd Water Main (291

h Pl NE to Soper Hill Rd) project allowed for replacement 
of approximately 537 linear feet of existing water main with new 12-inch ductile iron water 
main, new water services and other associated work. 

City Council awarded the project to SRV Construction, Inc. on March 261
\ 2018 in the amount 

of $141,670.71 including a management reserve of $14,167.01 for a total allocation of 
$155,837.78. The project was completed at a cost of $115,307.10, which was $26,363.61 or 
18. 61 % below the original bid amount. 

Work performed under this contract was inspected by City staff and found to be physically 
complete in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to accept the Sunnyside Blvd Water Main 
(29th Pl NE to So er Hill Rd) roject, startin the 45-day lien filin eriod for roject closeout. 

Item 3 - 1

42



May 29th, 2018 

SRV Construction, Inc. 
Attn: John Snyder 
P.O. Box 507 
9884 Padilla Heights Road 
Anacortes, WA 98221 

PUBLIC WORKS 
Kevin Nielsen, Director 

80 Columbia Avenue 
Marysville, Washington 98270 

Phone(360)363-8100 
Fax(360)363-8284 

Subject: Sunnyside Blvd Water Main (29111 Pl NE to Soper Hill Rd)- Notice of Physical Completion 

Dear John, 

In accordance with Section 1-05.11(2) of the Special Provisions, this project was considered 
physically complete as of Thursday, May 29th, 2018. This notification does not constitute final 
acceptance. Recommendation for final acceptance will be sent to the City Council for approval 
at the first available council meeting. Please submit the following items for project closeout: 

1. Affidavits of Wages Paid 

Upon obtaining receipt of the above items and acceptance I will submit a notice of completion 
of public works project to obtain the following: 

1. Certificate of Release from the Department of Revenue 
2. Certificate of Release from the Employment Security Department 
3. Certificate of Release from the Department of L&I 

It has been a pleasure working with SRV Construction, Inc. on this project. I look forward to 
working with you in the futu re. 

)r'r;5£ 
Adam Benton 
Project Engineer 

Item 3 - 2

43



Index #4
 

44



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  6/25/2018 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution Amending Procurement Procedures  
PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  
Jon Walker  

DEPARTMENT:   
Legal 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT:   
  
SUMMARY:   

 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2415 on May 8, 2017.  This resolution updated the 
procurement procedures used by the city.  This resolution would replace No. 2415 and make a 
single change in authorizing the Mayor to approve no-cost time extensions not exceeding six 
months on contracts that otherwise require Council approval for amendments (i.e. those of 
$75,000 or greater).  It is difficult to predict all factors that might affect the completion of a 
contract and this would avoid returning to Council with request for short, no-cost time extensions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Staff recommends that Council consider approving the 
change in the procurement policy. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move to adopt Resolution No. ____. 

Item 4 - 1

45



Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

 
RESOLUTION NO.    

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE DELEGATING CONTRACTING 
AUTHORITY, ESTABLISHING MINIMUM PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES, AND 

REPEALING 
RESOLUTION NO. 2415 

WHEREAS, Washington State law requires the City to follow certain procedures in bidding and 
awarding public work projects, requires the City to follow certain procedures in procuring specified 
services, and otherwise allows the City Council to establish the manner in which the City procures public 
works, goods, and services; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to establish provisions for interlocal cooperative purchasing 
agreements as allowed under RCW 39.34; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to delegate its contracting authority, in accordance with this 
Resolution, to allow the City to serve the public good by procuring public works, goods, and services in 
an efficient and effective manner that complies with State law;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Delegation of Contracting Authority and Reservation of Council Approval. 

The City Council must approve the following agreements prior to the Mayor executing them: 

a. All agreements with a total cost of $75,000 or greater. 

b. All interlocal agreements. 

c. All change orders, amendments, or supplemental agreements modifying an existing 
agreement that had an original total cost of $75,000 or greater, except no-cost time 
extensions that do not exceed six months. 

d. All change orders, amendments, or supplemental agreements modifying an existing 
agreement that had an original total cost of less than $75,000 but where the cumulative 
total of the original agreement and all change orders, amendments, and supplemental 
agreements will exceed $75,000. 

The Mayor may otherwise execute agreements, as necessary, without Council approval, provided that the 
agreement is solicited and awarded in accordance with the minimum procedures contained in this 
Resolution and such further procedures as the Mayor, Chief Administrative Officer, or Finance Director 
may adopt that are not inconsistent with this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Minimum Procurement Requirements. 

City staff shall follow, at a minimum, the procedures listed below, and such further procedures as the 
Mayor, Chief Administrative Officer, or Finance Director may adopt that are not inconsistent with this 
Resolution. Procedures are not inconsistent if they require, for a particular procurement, more process or 
more competition than specified in this Resolution. 

Item 4 - 2

46



Page 2 of 4 

a. Purchase of Goods, Materials, and Supplies (unrelated to a public work). The procurement of 
goods, materials, and supplies must comply with the table below: 

Limit* Minimum Requirement 

$0 – $2,499 Single Quote – Department Heads may use a local purchase order or 
purchasing card.  

$2,500 – $34,999 Minimal Competition – City staff must obtain three verbal quotes from at 
least three suppliers. 

$35,000 – $149,999 Informal Competition – City staff must obtain written quotations from at 
least three suppliers.  

$150,000 and Above Formal Competition – City staff must utilize competitive bidding. 

*Including applicable taxes and freight 

b. Services. 

i. Architectural and Engineering Professional Services. City staff must comply with 
chapter 39.80 RCW for procuring professional services within the architectural, 
engineering, land surveying, or landscape architecture professions. 

ii. Other Services. City staff must utilize the level of competition that is practical under 
the circumstance and follow any guidance from the Legal Department. Where price 
alone is not the determining factor, staff may utilize requests for proposals. 

c. Public Work. Procurements involving a public work of the City must comply with the 
minimum competition listed in the table below (staff may always utilize any greater 
competition listed for higher dollar thresholds): 

Single Craft/Trade  Multi Craft/Trade 

Limit Minimum Competition Limit Minimum Competition 

$0 – $7,499 Single Quote $0 – $7,499 Single Quote 

$7,500 –$40,000 Minimal Competition (three 
verbal quotes) 

$7,500 – $64,999 Minimal Competition 
(three verbal quotes) 

$40,000 –
$299,999 

Small Works Roster (at 
least five contractors) 

$65,000 – $299,999 Small Works Roster (at 
least five contractors) 

$300,000 and  
Above 

Competitive Bidding $300,000 and 
Above 

Competitive Bidding 

Section 3.  Cooperative Purchasing.  

The City must enter into an interlocal cooperative purchasing agreement, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in RCW 39.34 as currently written or hereafter amended, prior to executing an 
agreement for a cooperative purchase.  

Item 4 - 3

47



Page 3 of 4 

When purchases are made from a contract awarded by another public agency and where an interlocal 
cooperative purchasing agreement is in place, any statutory obligation to provide notice for bids or 
proposals that applies to the City is satisfied if the public agency or group of public agencies that awarded 
the bid, proposal, or contract complied with its own statutory requirements and either (1) posted the bid or 
solicitation notice on a website established and maintained by a public agency, purchasing cooperative or 
similar service provider, for purposes of posting public notice of bid or proposal solicitations, or (2) 
provided an access link on the state’s web portal to the notice. 

The City may include, in any invitation to bid, request for proposals, or other solicitation notice that the 
City participates in cooperative purchasing and that other public agencies may desire to place orders in 
accordance with the awarded contract. Bidders/proposers may be asked to indicate if they agree to allow 
orders from other public agencies that have an interlocal cooperative purchasing agreement with the City. 

Section 4.  Grant Funds. 

In order to insure that procurements with grant funds are handled appropriately, that the process is 
transparent, and that all areas of procurement accountability are address, procurements with grant funds 
must follow the more restrictive of: (1) this Resolution, (2) any procedures adopted by the Mayor, Chief 
Administrative Officer, or Finance Director, or (3) the requirements applicable to the grant funds. 

Section 5.  Federal Grant Funds. 

a. Procurement Policy. 

In order to insure that procurements with Federal grant funds are handled appropriately, that the process is 
transparent, and that all areas of procurement accountability are address, procurements with Federal grant 
funds must follow the more restrictive of: (1) this Resolution, (2) any procedures adopted by the Mayor, 
Chief Administrative Officer, or Finance Director, or (3) the requirements of the Federal grant or Federal 
law and regulations. 

b. Code of Ethics. 

City staff involved in the procurement of goods and services with Federal grant funds shall have a full 
understanding of the Federal awarding agency’s conflict of interest policies applicable to the award. 

City staff involved in the procurement of goods and services with Federal grant funds must disclose in 
writing any potential conflict of interest to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity in 
accordance with applicable Federal awarding agency policy. 

City staff involved in the procurement of goods and services with Federal grant funds must comply with 
State law and the City’s Code of Ethics, codified in chapter 2.80 of the Marysville Municipal Code. 

Section 6.  Exceptions and Waiver of Competitive Procurement. 

Notwithstanding the procedures identified in this Resolution, nothing shall prohibit City staff and the 
Mayor from soliciting or entering into an agreement as otherwise authorized by State law. To the extent 
authorized by State law, the City Council waives competitive procurement requirements in the following 
situations and any other situations authorized by state law: 

(1) Purchases that are clearly and legitimately limited to a single source of supply; 

(2) Purchases involving special facilities or market conditions; 

(3) Purchases in the event of an emergency; 

(4) Purchases of insurance or bonds; 

(5) Public works in the event of an emergency; and 

Item 4 - 4

48



Page 4 of 4 

(6) Purchases supplies, materials, or equipment through an auction conducted by the United 
States or an agency thereof, an agency of the state of Washington, a municipality, or other 
government agency, or a private party if the items can be obtained at a competitive price. 

Section 7.  Administration. Administration of this Resolution is the responsibility of the Finance 
Director. 

Section 8.  Repealer. Resolution No. 2415 is hereby repealed for the reason that it is replaced by this 
Resolution. 

 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this _____ day of 

____________________, 2018.  
 
 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 
       
Jon Nehring, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Tina Brock, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Jon Walker, City Attorney 

Item 4 - 5

49



Index #5
 

50



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  6/25/18 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  
Community Beautification Program Grant 
PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  
Leah Tocco  
DEPARTMENT:    
Executive Department 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   
00199524.548000 $20,960.00 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
 
The Community Beautification Program Grant Review Committee convened on June 14, 
2018 to review grant applications.  Funding available is $50,000 through 2018. 
 
The committee recommended awarding $20,960 to the following applicants. 
 

Copper Creek Homeowners Association $5,000.00 
Neighborhood entrance monuments, irrigation and landscaping along lower portion of 
upper division along Ingraham Blvd. 
 
102nd Place NE $5,000.00 
Replacement of failing sections of wooden fencing around neighborhood stormwater 
ponds along entrance to neighborhood. 
 
Harborview Homeowners Association $7,500.00 
Replacement of deteriorated neighborhood fencing along Sunnyside Blvd. and 52nd 
Ave, bark installed and neighborhood sign refurbished. 
 
Apple Vista $3,460.00 
Installation of neighborhood monument sign on empty brick monument at entrance to 
neighborhood and improved landscaping beneath sign. 
 

 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Staff recommends the City Council consider approving the Community Beautification Program 
Grant Review Committee’s recommendation on award funding. 

Item 5 - 1

51



Index #6
 

52



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: June 25, 2018

The City of Kenmore has requested Marysville Parks, Culture and Recreation

Department's assistance in offering an outdoor movie series for their citizens based on

the success of our program. The City of Kenmore is hosting four free events on city-
owned property. Marysville Parks, Culture and Recreation has agreed to provide

equipment and staff to present each film at a cost of $700.00 per event, payable by the

City of Kenmore.

Our City Attorney's Office has developed an Interlocal Agreement between the City of
Kenmore and City of Marysville to clearly define services provided by Marysville Parks,

Culture and Recreation and identifies responsibilities of each jurisdiction and associated

indemnifications.

The events are scheduled for:
1. Wednesday, July I l, 2018

2. Wednesday, July 25,2018
3. Wednesday, August 8, 2018
4. Wednesday, August 22,2018

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the City Council consider authorizing the Mayor to sign the attached

Interlocal Agreement between the City of Kenmore and the City of Marysville for Outdoor Video

Services

AGENDA ITEM:
Interlocal Agreement Between City of Kenmore and the City of Marysville for Outdoor Video

Services
PREPARED BY: DIRECTOR APPROVAL:

Jim BallewLauren Woodmansee

DEPARTMENT:
Parks, Culture and Recreation

ATTACHMENTS:
Interlocal Agreement

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT:

00110367 376015 $2,800.00

SUMMARY:

Item 6 - 1

53



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF KENMORE

AND THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE
FOR OUTDOOR VIDEO SERVICES

This Interlocal Agreement effective July 11,2018 between the City of Kenmore, a Washington
municipal corporation, herein after referred to as "KENMORE" and the City of Marysville, a

Washington municipal corporation, herein after referred to as "MARYSVILLE", pursuant to the
authority granted by Chapter 39.34 RCW.

WHpnpaS, the City of KENMORE is the organizerlhost jurisdiction of outdoor movie
presentations which shall be selected, provided and licensed by City of KENMORE and presented on
July 11, July 25, August 8, August 22; and

WffpnEnS, the City of KENMORE is the owner of the property where the movie will be shown to
the community for free; and

WffnnEaS, the Cify of MARYSULLE has sufficient OUTDOOR VIDEO equipment, staff and

vehicles to provide OUTDOOR VIDEO SERVICES for public events within the City of Marysville
and for other Cities as well; and

WffpnBeS, the City of KENMORE desires to utilize the City of MARYSVILLE'S oUTDooR
VIDEO SERVICES; and

'WHPREeS, 
this Agreement between Parties is made pursuant to Chapter 39.34 RCW, the

Interlocal Cooperation Act, for the Cify of MARYSVILLE to provide OUTDOOR VIDEO
SERVICES to the City of KENMORE to exercise their powers jointly and thereby maximize their
abilities to provide services and facilities that will best fulfill common needs and achieve common
goals.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, KENMORE
and MARYSVILLE agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

MARYSVILLE agrees to provide OUTDOOR VIDEO SERVICES to KENMORE as

defined in this Agreement. MARYSVILLE'S performance of said services under this
Agreement may be limited by the availability of MARYSVILLE'S personnel and
equipment. MARYSVILLE will notif' the City of KENMORE at least 48 hours
before the event if it is not able to provide personnel andlor equipment.

l. MARYSVILLE will provide OUTDOORVIDEO SERVICES to KENMORE.

2. MARYSVILLE will provide the video and audio equipment including movie
screen, personnel and vehicles to transport the equipment and personnel to

A.

Item 6 - 2

54



B

KENMORE. MARYSVILLE personnel will operate the video equipment and
vehicles.

KENMORE will provide the following:

1. An authorized location.

2. Two (2) 20 amp circuits for event power

3. Other services/personnel.

The date for video services (FILM) will be:

ednesday, July I I,2018
ednesday, July25,2018
ednesday, August 8, 2018
ednesday, August 22, 2018

It is understood and agreed by all parties that MARYSVILLE staff providing services
pursuant to this Agreement are acting in their official capacity as employees of
MARYSVILLE and shall be under the exclusive direction and control of
MARYSVILLE.

It is understood and agreed by all parties that KENMORE staff providing services
pursuant to this Agreement are acting in their official capacity as employees of
KENMORE and shall be under the exclusive direction and control of KENMORE.

KENMORE and MARYSVILLE agree to cooperate with all terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and shall furnish any information, or other material available to it as

may be required in the course of the performance of this Agreement.

KENMORE, by this Agreement, and to the extent contained herein, delegates on an
as needed, as requested basis to MARYSVILLE the authority to perform on
KENMORE'S behalf those services as provided in this Agreement.

C

1.W
2.W
3.W
4.W

E

F

G

2. COMPENSATION/FEES

A.

B.

KENMORE will pay MARYSVILLE per performance for the use of the employees,
equipment and vehicles in the amount of $700.00 per date.

KENMORE will pay MARYSVILLE21% of the event fee in the event KENMORE
cancels an event with less than12 hours phone notice to MARYSVILLE as provided
in Section 8 (C) (2) of this Agreement.

MARYSVILLE shall bill KENMORE and KENMORE shall pay MARYSVILLE
within thirty (30) days receipt of the bill.

C.

Item 6 - 3

55



3. AMENDMENTS/MODIFICATION

Provisions within this Agreement may be amended with the mutual consent of the parties
hereto. No additions to, or alterations of, the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless
made in writing, formally approved and executed in the same manner as this Agreement.

4. INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY

A. Indemnification:

KENMORE will at all times indemnifu and hold harmless and defend
MARYSVILLE, their elected officials, officers, employees, agents and
representatives, from and against any and all lawsuits, damages, costs,
charges, expenses, judgments and liabilities, including attorney's fees
(including attorney's fees in establishing indemnifi cation), collectively
referred to herein as "losses" resulting from, arising out of, or related to one
or more claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or omissions of
KENMORE in performance under this agreement.

MARYSVILLE will at all times indemnif' and hold harmless and defend
KENMORE, their elected officials, officers, employees, agents and
representatives, from and against any and all lawsuits, damages, costs,
charges, expenses, judgments and liabilities, including attorney's fees
(including attorney's fees in establishing indemnification), collectively
referred to herein as "losses" resulting from, arising out of, or related to one
or more claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or omissions of
MARYSVILLE in performance under this agreement.

The term "claims" as used herein shall mean all claims, lawsuits, causes of
action, and other legal actions and proceedings of whatsoever nature,
involving bodily or personal injury or death of any person or damage to any
property including, but not limited to, persons employed by MARYSVILLE,
KENMORE, or other person and all property owned or claimed by
MARYSVILLE, KENMORE, or affiliate of thereof, or any other person;
except for those losses or claims for damages solely caused by the negligence
or willful misconduct of MARYSVILLE or KENMORE, their elected and
appointed officials, officers, employees or agents.

B. NOTHING HEREIN SHALL REQUIRE OR BE INTERPRETED TO:

1. Waive any defense arising out of RCW Title 51

Limit or restrict the ability of any City or employee or legal counsel for any
City or employee to exercise any right, defense or remedy which aparty to a
lawsuit may have with respect to claims or third parties, including, but not
limited to, any good faith attempts to seek dismissal or legal claims against a
party by any proper means allowed under the civil rules in either state or
federal court.

1

2

J

2

Item 6 - 4

56



Cover or require indemnification or payment of any judgment against any
individual or Party for intentional or wrongful conduct outside the scope of
employment of any individual or for any judgment for punitive damages
against any individual or city. Payment of punitive damage awards, fines or
sanctions shall be the sole responsibility of the individual against whom said
judgment is rendered andlor his or her municipal employer, should that
employer elect to make said payment voluntarily. This agreement does not
require indemnification of any punitive damage awards or for any order
imposing fines or sanctions.

C. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement.

5. INSURANCE

Both parties to this Agreement shall maintain public liability insurance. Both parties
are members and insured through the Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA)
and shall maintain their membership throughout the term of this Agreement.

Such insurance shall not be reduced or canceled without forty-five (45) days written
notice from the other parly. Reduction or cancellation of the insurance shall render
this Agreement void.

Upon request by one party to the other, the party receiving such request shall provide
to the party making such request proof of insurance coverage from WCIA verifuing
thatparty is a covered member in good standing.

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained shall be construed as creating the relationship of employer
and employee, or principal and agent, between KENMORE and MARYSVILLE or
any of KENMORE'S or MARYSVILLE's agents or employees.

KENMORE shall retain all authority for rendition of services, standards of
performance, control of personnel, and other matters incident to the performance of
services by KENMORE pursuant to this Agreement.

MARYSVILLE shall retain all authority for rendition of services, standards of
performance, control of personnel, and other matters incident to the performance of
services by MARYSVILLE pursuant to this Agreement.

Nothing in this Agreement shall make any employee of KENMORE a
MARYSVILLE employee for any purpose, including, but not limited to, withholding
of taxes, payment of benefits, worker's compensation pursuant to Title 51 RCW, or
any other rights or privileges accorded KENMORE or employees by virtue of their
employment.

Nothing in this Agreement shall make any employee of MARYSVILLE a
KENMORE employee for any purpose, including, but not limited to, withholding of
taxes, payment of benefits, worker's compensation pursuant to Title 5l RCW, or any

-t

A

B

C.

A.

B

Item 6 - 5

57



other rights or privileges accorded MARYSVILLE employees by virtue of their
employment.

7. LEGAL RELATIONS

The prevailing Party in any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to
redress any breach hereofshall be entitled to recover from the other party its costs
and reasonable attorney' fees incurred in such action.

The Parties shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances
applicable to work to be done under this agreement. This Agreement shall be
interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington. Venue for any
action commenced relating to the interpretation, breach or enforcement of this
agreement shall be in Snohomish County Superior Court.

The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and compromise,
any unresolved dispute arising under this contractmay be resolved by a mutually
agreed upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation.

8. DURATION/TERMINATION/NOTICE/EMERGENCY NOTICE

This Agreement will become effective on the date of affixing the last signature hereto
and shall remain in effect for a period of six months, subject to renewal.

Either party may terminate this Agreement, for any reason, upon providing thirty (30)
days written notice to the other party, in which case each City shall pay the other City
for all services provided up to and including the date of termination.

C. Notices

1. Required notices, with the exception of legal process, shall be given in writing to
the following respective addresses:

City of MARYSVILLE:
6915 Armar Road
Marysville, WA 98270

City of KENMORE:
18120 68th Ave NE
Kenmore, WA 98028

2. Event Cancellation Notice via Phone/Emergency Contact:

The below named individuals are designated as the representatives of the respective
parties. The representatives shall be responsible for administration of this
Agreement. In the event a representative is changed, the party making the
change shall notifu the other party.

A

B

C.

A

B

Item 6 - 6

58



MARYSVILLE:
Name: Lauren Woodmansee, Cultural Arts Supervisor
Phone Number: 360-363-8408

KENMORE:
Name: Shelby Krogh, Volunteer & Events Supervisor
Phone Number: 425-398-8900

D Termination shall not affect the rights and obligations of the parties under Sections 4,
5,6 and 11 of this Agreement.

9. WAIVER
No term or provision herein shall be waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or
consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented.

10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement, including any exhibits and documents referenced herein, constitutes the
entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes all proposals, oral or written, between
the parties regarding plan review and inspection services.

11. PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES
All privileges and immunities from liability, exemption from ordinances, rules, laws, all
pension, disability, workers' compensation and other benefits which apply to the activities of
MARYSVILLE employees while performing their functions within the territorial limits of
MARYSVILLE shall apply to them to the same degree and extent while they are engaged in
the performance of any of their authorized functions and duties within KENMORE under the
provisions of this Agreement.

12. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY STATUS
The parties agree that this Agreement shall not confer third-party beneficiary status on any
non-party to this Agreement.

13. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this Agreement or its application to any person or circumstance is held
invalid, the remainder of the provision andlor the application of the provisions to other
persons or circumstances shall not be affected.

14. APPROVAL AND FILING
APPROVAL AND FILING. Each party shall approve this Agreement pursuant to the laws of
the governing body of said party. The attested signature of the officials identified below shall
constitute a presumption that such approval was properly obtained. A copy of this Agreement
shall be filed with the Snohomish County Auditor's office pursuant to RCW 39.34.040.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK.)

Item 6 - 7

59



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement, effective on the date indicated

below.

CITY OF MARYSVILLE CITY OF KENMORE

JON NEHRING Mayor

Date:

Attest:

TINA BROCK
Approved as to form

Deputy City Clerk

JON WALKER City Attorney
Attorney for the City of MARYSVILLE

/ 4r
Date: 

6_ tz-l
Attest:

Y City Clerk
as to form:

ROD KASEGUMA City Attorney
Attorney for City of KENMORE
(Contracted through Inslee Best)

IHavof

c;6 flfr.

Item 6 - 8

60



Index #7
 

61



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: June 25, 2018

The State of Washington Department of Ecology is providing the City of Marysville

$25,000.00 in funding to update Marysville's Shoreline Master Program. This update is

required to be accomplished by June 30,2019, and then updated every 8 years thereafter.

The grant helps to pay for costs associated with this required update over the next year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement

between the City of Marysville and the State of Washington Department of Ecology for a

$25,000.00 grant to help pay for the update to the Shoreline Master Program.

AGENDA ITEM:

Agreement between the City of Marysville and the State of Washington Department of Ecology

for a $25,000.00 grant to help pay for the update to the Shoreline Master Program.

PREPARED BY

Dave Koenig

D APPROVAL:

DEPARTMENT:

Community Development

t

ATTACHMENTS:
Agreement

BI]DGET CODE: AMOTTNT

SUMMARY

Item 7 - 1

62



DEPARTMENT OF

ECOLOGY
State of Washington

Agreement No. SEASMP -17 19-MarCDD-00021

SHORELANDS SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM (1719) AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

AND

MARYSVILLE, CITY OF

This is a binding Agreement entered into by and between the state of Washington, Department of Ecology,

hereinafter referred to as "ECOLOGY," and Marysville, City of, hereinafter referred to as the "RECIPIENT," to carry

out with the provided funds activities described herein.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Total Cost:

Total Eligible Cost:

Ecology Share:

Recipient Share:

The Effective Date of this Agreement is:

The Expiration Date of this Agreement is no later than:

Project Type:

$25,000.00

$25,000.00

$25,000.00

$0.00

07/01/2017

0613012019

Periodic Review of the Shoreline Master Program

Project Short Description:

The RECIPIENT will complete a periodic review of the Shoreline Master Program (SMP) that is developed and

adopted in a manner consistent with requirements of the Shoreline Management Act (SMA), RCW 90.58, and

its implementing rules, W AC 173-26, including the Shoreline Master Program Guidelines (Guidelines)..

Project Long Description:

The purpose of the SMP periodic review is (a) To assure that master program complies with applicable law and

guidelines in effect at the time of the review, and (b) To assure consistency of the master program with the local

govemment's comprehensive plan and development regulations adopted under RCW 36.70A, if applicable.

Local governments should also consider amendments needed to address changed circumstances, new

information or improved data.

Overall Goal:

Periodic Review Checklist and SMP amendment or Findings of Adequacy

Item 7 - 2

63



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-I719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

OrganizationName: Marysville, City of

Federal Tax ID:
DUNS Number:

9 l *600 1459

Mailing Address 80 Columbia Ave

Marysville, WA 98270-5 1 30

Physical Address

Organization Email:
Organization Fax:

Gontacts

80 Columbia Ave
Marysville, Washington 982'7 0 - 5 130

cdungan@marysvillewa. gov

(360) 6s1-s099

Page 2 of 24

Project Manager
Cheryl Dungan

Senior Planner

80 Columbia Ave

Marysville, Washington 9827 0- 5 I 30

Email: cdungan@marysvillewa.gov

Phone: (360) 363-8100

Billing Contact Denise Gritton

Financial Planning Administrator

80 Columbia Ave

Marysville, Washington 9827 0 - 5 1 30

Email : dgritton@marysvillewa. gov

Phone: (360)363-8206

Authorized
Signatory

David Koenig

Community Development Director

80 Columbia Ave
Marysville, Washington 9827 0-5 130

Email: dkoenig@marysvillewa.gov

Phone: (360) 363-8100

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 3

64



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- l719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

ECOLOGY INFORMATION

Mailing Address Department of Ecology

Shorelands

PO BOX 47600

Olympia, WA 98504-7600

Physical Address: Shorelands

300 Desmond Drive SE

Lacey, WA 98503

Contacts

Page3 of24

Project
Manager

David Pater

913 Squalicum Way Suite 101

Bellingham, Washington 98225

Email: dapa46l @ecy.wa.gov
Phone: (360)255-4375

Financial
Manager

Bev Huether

PO Box 47600

Olympia, Washington 98504-7 600

Email: bhue46l @ecy.wa.gov
Phone: (360)407-7254

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 4

65



State of Washington Department of Ecology
Agreement No: SEASMP-I719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

RECIPIENT agrees to furnish the necessary personnel, equipment, materials, services, and otherwise do all things

necessary for or incidental to the performance of work as set forth in this Agreement.

RECIPIENT acknowledges that they had the oppoftunity to review the entire Agreement, including all the terms and

conditions ofthis Agreement, Scope of Work, attachments, and incorporated or referenced documents, as well as all

applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, and guidelines mentioned in this Agreement. Furthermore, the

RECIPIENT has read, understood, and accepts all requirements contained within this Agreement.

This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties, and there are no other understandings or

representations other than as set forth, or incorporated by reference, herein.

No subsequent modifications or amendments to this agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing, signed

by authorized representatives of the RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY and made a part of this agreement. ECOLOGY and

RECIPIENT may change their respective staff contacts without the concurrence of either party.

This Agreement shall be subject to the written approval of Ecology's authorized representative and shall not be

binding until so approved.

The signatories to this Agreement represent that they have the authority to execute this Agreement and bind their

respective organizations to this Agreement.

IN V/ITNESS WHEREOF: the parties hereto, having read this Agreement in its entirety, including all attachments, do

agree in each and every particular and have thus set their hands hereunto.

Washington State

Department of Ecology
Marysville, City of

By:

Page 4 of24

By

Gordon White

Shorelands

Program Manager

Template Approved to Form by

Attomey General's Office

Date David Koenig

Community Development Director

Date

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 5

66



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:

Project Title:
Recipient Name:

SEASMP- I 7l 9-MarCDD-0002 I

Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Marysville, City of

Page 5 of24

Denise Gritton

Financial Planning Administrator Date

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 6

67



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- l7l 9-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 1 Task Cost: $1,250.00

Task Title: Project Oversight: Coordination, Management, and Administration

Task Description:

Project Oversight

The RECIPIENT shall provide services necessary to complete the scope of work in compliance with this ECOLOGY

grant. Oversight services include l) project coordination,2) project management, and 3) project administration.

1. 1 Project Coordination:

A. The RECIPIENT shall coordinate throughout the SMP review process with ECOLOGY. The RECIPIENT will
provide ECOLOGY opportunities to review draft deliverables at appropriate intervals. ECOLOGY will provide

ongoing technical assistance, and will evaluate consistency of deliverables with the Shoreline Management Act and

applicable guidelines throughout the review process.

B. The RECIPIENT shall coordinate with other applicable federal, state and local agencies, neighboring jurisdictions,

and Indian tribes as provided in the Guidelines and SMA procedural rules. In addition, the RECIPIENT will consult

with other appropriate entities which may have useful information if necessary.

1.2 Project Management:

A. The RECIPIENT shall conduct activities including compliance with state statutes and rules, project scheduling,

adherence to the scope of work, timelines, and due dates; request for, and if applicable, conducting the competitive

procurement process including preparation of contractor bidding documents, adveftisements, and grant monitoring.

1.3 Project Administration:
A. The RECIPIENT shall submit quarterly progress reports and payment requests (PRPRs) with supporting

documentation; maintain project records, and be in compliance of deliverables on content and established due dates

Task Goal Statement:

Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY's grant administration requirements.

Task Expected Outcome:
* Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports and recipient closeout

report.
x Properly maintained project documentation.

Page 6 of24

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 7

68



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-I719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

Recipient Task Coordinator: Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner

Project Oversight: Coordination' Management' and Administration

Deliverables

PageT of24

Number Description Due Date

1.1 Progress Reports

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report 06t3012019

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 8

69



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- 171 9-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

Page 8 of24

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 2 Task Cost: $0.00

Task Title: Secure Consultant Services

Task Description:

If applicable, the RECIPIENT will:

A. Secure qualified consultant services: In accordance with the RECIPIENT procurement procedures, (if none, then

State procurement procedures), the RECIPIENT will enter into a contract with the selected consultant(s) and prepare a

sub agreement in accordance with the scope of work in this agreement.

Task Goal Statement:

To ensure the RECIPIENT has qualified personnel to conduct the scope of this project.

Task Expected Outcome:

Contract and sub-agreement with consultant(s) (if applicable).

Recipient Task Coordinator: Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner

Secure Consultant Services

Deliverables

Number Description Due Date

2.1 Final signed consulting contract. Upload to EAGL.

2.2 Update in progress report.

Version l0/30/2015

Item 7 - 9

70



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-1719-MarCDD-00021
Project Title. Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

Page9 of24

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 3 Task Cost: $2,750.00

Task Title Public Participation

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT will:

A. Develop Public Participation Plan: Prepare and disseminate a public participation plan to invite and encourage

public involvement in the SMP periodic review consistent with WAC 173-26-090. The public participation plan

should include applicable local requirements such as planning commission review and formal hearings, as well as

applicable state notice requirements.

B. Conduct public participation activities: Implement the public participation plan throughout the course of the SMP

periodic review process.

Task Goal Statement:

To inform and involve all stakeholders in the SMP periodic review process.

Task Expected Outcome:

Continuous public participation activities throughout the SMP periodic review process.

Recipient Task Coordinator: Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner

Public Participation

Deliverables

Number Description Due Date

3.1 Public Participation Plan. Upload to EAGL.

3.2 Updates of public involvement activities in progress report.

Version l0/30/2015

Item 7 - 10

71



State of Washington Department of Ecology
Agreement No:

Project Title:

Recipient Name:

SEASMP-1 71 9-MarCDD-0002 1

Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Marysville, City of

Page l0 of24

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 4 Task Cost: $16,000.00

Task Title: Review Shoreline Master Program and draft revisions, if needed

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT will

A. Review the SMP to determine if revisions are needed

1. Review amendments to RCW 90.58 and Ecology rules that have occurred since the Shoreline Master Program was

last amended, and determine if local amendments are needed to maintain compliance. Ecology will provide a checklist

of legislative and rule amendments to assist local governments with this review.

2. Review changes to the comprehensive plan and development regulations to determine if the Shoreline Master

Program policies and regulations remain consistent with them. Document the consistency analysis to support proposed

changes to the Shoreline Master Program.

3. Conduct additional analysis deemed necessary to address changing local circumstances, new information or

improved data.

B. Draft revised SMP goals, policies and regulations, or prepare Finding of Adequacy

l. Prepare amended goals and policies or regulations identified through the review process. Use the checklist to

identifu where in the SMP changes are made to address applicable statutory or regulatory changes.

2. Where the review conducted under Task 44, concludes no changes are necessary, prepare draft Findings of
Adequacy.

Task Goal Statement:

To review the SMP to determine if changes are necessary, and revise the SMP if changes are deemed necessary

Task Expected Outcome:

A completed Periodic Review Checklist documenting the public review of the SMP, and either initial draft SMP

amendments or draft Findings of Adequacy.

Recioient Task Coordinator: Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner

Review Shoreline Master Program and draft revisions, if needed

Deliverables

Number Description Due Date

4.1 A Periodic Review Checklist documenting consideration of statutory

amendments, and intemal consistency review. Upload to EAGL.

4.2 Draft SMP amendments or Findings of Adequacy and supporting

documentation.'Upload to EAGL.

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 11

72



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- 171 9-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number 5 Task Cost: $5,000.00

Task Title: Local SMP or Findings of Adequacy Adoption Process

Task Description:

The RECIPIENT will

Conduct a local review and adoption process for the proposed Shoreline Master Program as provided in the SMA,

W AC 173-26, and the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). Where amendments to the SMP are proposed they

shall contain applicable shoreline goals, policies or regulations together with copies ofany provisions adopted by

reference. Where no changes are needed, the local process will include formal Findings of Adequacy.

A. Assemble complete Final Draft SMP amendment or Findings of Adequacy

Assemble a complete SMP amendment for review and approval by the local jurisdictional governing body. Where the

review determined that no changes are needed, prepare formal Findings of Adequacy.

B. Complete SEPA review and documentation

Conduct SEPA review pursuant to the State Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C)

C. Provide GMA 60-day notice of intent to adopt

For local governments planning under the Growth Management Act, notifu ECOLOGY and the Department of
Commerce of intent to adopt the SMP amendment at least 60 days in advance of final local approval, pursuant to RCW

36.70A.106.

D. Hold public hearing

Hold at least one public hearing prior to local adoption of the draft SMP or Findings of Adequacy, consistent with the

requirements of WAC 173-26-100 or WAC 173-26-104.

E. Prepare a responsiveness summary

Prepare a summary responding to all comments received during the public hearing and the public comment period. The

names and mailing addresses of all interested parties providing comment shall be compiled.

F. Adopt SMP and submit to ECOLOGY

Complete the adoption process for the SMP update under either W AC 173-26- 1 00 or W AC 173-26- 104 and submit the

locally-adopted Draft SMP amendment or Findings of Adequacy and Periodic Review Checklist to ECOLOGY under

wAC 173-26-110.

Task Goal Statement:

To complete a locally adopted Shoreline Master Program amendment or Findings of Adequacy

Task Expected Outcome:

A locally adopted Shoreline Master Program amendment or Findings of Adequacy

Page I I of24

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 12

73



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-I719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

Recipient Task Coordinator: Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner

Local SMP or Findings of Adequacy Adoption Process

Deliverables

Page 12 of24

Number Description Due Date

5.1 A draft SMP amendment or Findings of Adequacy, with relevant

supporting documentation, and a complete Periodic Review checklist.

(Task 5.A). Upload to EAGL

5.2 SEPA products: Checklist; Threshold Determination; SEPA notice.

(Task 5.B). Upload to EAGL.

5.3 Evidence of compliance with GMA notice requirements

(Task 5.C). Upload to EAGL.

5.4 Public hearing record.
(Task 5.D). Upload to EAGL.

5.5 Response to comments received.

(Task 5.E). Upload to EAGL.

5.6 Locally adopted draft SMP amendment or Findings of Adequacy and

Periodic Review Checklist.
(Task 5.F). Upload to EAGL.

Version 10/30/2015
Item 7 - 13

74



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- 1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

BUDGET

Funding Distribution EGl 80459

NOTE: The above funding distribution number is used to identify this specific agreement and budget on pawent
remittances and may be referenced on other communications from ECOLOGY. Your agreement may have multiple

funding distribution numbers to identify each budget.

Page 13 of24

Funding Title:
Funding Effective Date

Funding Source:

Title

Environmental Legacy Stewardship Account (Funding Type:
07/0112017 Funding Expiration Date:

Environment al Legacy Stewardship Account (EL SA)

State

100Y.

Shorelands Periodic Review of Shoreline Master Program

Grant
0613012019

Type:

Funding Source o%

Description:

Approved Indirect Costs Rate: Approved State Indirect Rate: 30%
Recipient Match%o: 0%
InKind Interlocal Allowed: No
InKind Other Allowed: No
Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant? No

Environmental Legacy Stewardship Account (ELSA) Task Total

Project Oversight: Coordination, Management, and

Administration

$ 1,250.00

Secure Consultant Services $ 0.00

Public Participation $ 2,750.00

Review Shoreline Master Program and draft revisions, if
needed

$ 16,000.00

Local SMP or Findings of Adequacy Adoption Process $ 5,000.00

Version 10/30/2015

Total: $ 25,000.00

Item 7 - 14

75



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

Fundins Distribution Summarv

Recipient / Ecology Share

AGREEMENT SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

N/A

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The RECIPIENT will negotiate the task deliverable due dates with ECOLOGY's Project Manager

The task deliverable due dates will be managed by and through the Deliverable Due Date form located on the

Application Menu - Forms page in EAGL. (Note: This form does not automatically print out with the agreement)

The RECIPIENT will coordinate and keep track of these dates with ECOLOGY's Project Manager and will note any

changes on the quarterly progress reports.

GENERAL FEDERAL CONDITIONS

lf a portion or atl of the funds for this agreement are provided through federal funding sources or this

agreement is used to match a federal grant award, the following terms and conditions apply to you.

A. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION. DEBARMENT. INELIGIBILITY OR VOLLINTARY

EXCLUSION:
l. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR, by signing this agreement, cefiifies that it is not suspended, debarred,

proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from contracting with the federal

government, or from receiving contracts paid for with federal funds. If the RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR is

unable to certify to the statements contained in the certification, they must provide an explanation as to why they

cannot.

2. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR shall provide immediate written notice to ECOLOGY if at any time the

RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become

erroneous by reason ofchanged circumstances.

3. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, participant,

person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have

the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.

You may contact ECOLOGY for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

4. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR agrees it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction

with a person who is proposed for debarment under the applicable Code of Federal Regulations, debarred,

suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction.

5. The RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR further agrees by signing this agreement, that it will include this clause titled

Version l0/30/2015

Page 14 of 24

Funding Distribution Name Recipient Match Vo Recipient Share Ecology Share Total

Environmental Legacy

Stewardship Account (ELSA)
0.00 % $ 0.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00

Total $ 0.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00

Item 7 - 15

76



State of Washington Departmsnt of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

..CERTIFICATION REGARDING SUSPENSION, DEBARMENT,INELIGIBILITY OR VOLUNTARY

EXCLUSION" without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier

covered transactions.

6. Pursuant to 2CFR180.330, the RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR is responsible for ensuring that any lower tier

covered transaction complies with certification of suspension and debarment requirements.

7. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR acknowledges that failing to disclose the information required in the Code of
Federal Regulations may result in the delay or negation of this funding agreement, or pursuance of legal

remedies, including suspension and debarment.

8. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR agrees to keep proof in its agreement file, that it, and all lower tier recipients or

contractors, are not suspended or debarred, and will make this proof available to ECOLOGY before requests for

reimbursements will be approved for payment. RECIPIENT/CONTRACTOR must run a search in
<http://www.sam.gov> and print a copy of completed searches to document proof of compliance.

B. FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) REPORTING

REQUIREMENTS:

CONTRACTOR/RECIPIENT must complete the FFATA Data Collection Form (ECY 070-395) and return it
with the signed agreement to ECOLOGY.

Any CONTRACTOR/RECIPIENT that meets each of the criteria below must repoft compensation for its five

top executives using the FFATA Data Collection Form.

Receives more than $25,000 in federal funds under this award.

Receives more than 80 percent ofits annual gross revenues from federal funds

Receives more than $25,000,000 in annual federal funds.

Ecology will not pay any invoices until it has received a completed and signed FFATA Data Collection Form.

Ecology is required to report the FFATA information for federally funded agreements, including the required

DUNS number, at www.fsrs.gov <http://www.fsrs.gov/> within 30 days of agreement signature. The FFATA

information will be available to the public at www.usaspending.gov <http://www.usaspending.gov/>.

For more details on FFATA requirements, see www.fsrs.gov <http://www.fsrs.gov/>.

Page 15 of24

t

a

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 16

77



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-I719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysvrlle, City of

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Pertaining to Grant and Loan Agreements With the state of Washingtono Department of Ecology

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS OF LAST UPDATED 1/22/2018 VERSION

1. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

a) RECIPIENT shall follow the "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans - EAGL

Edition." (https://fortress.wa.gov/ecylpublications/SummaryPages/1701004.html)

b) RECIPIENT shall complete all activities funded by this Agreement and be fully responsible for the proper

management of all funds and resources made available under this Agreement.

c) RECIPIENT agrees to take complete responsibility for all actions taken under this Agreement, including ensuring

all subgrantees and contractors comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. ECOLOGY reserves the right

to request proof of compliance by subgrantees and contractors.

d) RECIPIENT's activities under this Agreement shall be subject to the review and approval by ECOLOGY for the

extent and character ofall work and services.

2. AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS
This Agreement may be altered, amended, or waived only by a written amendment executed by both parties. No

subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) of this Agreement will be of any force or effect unless in writing and

signed by authorized representatives of both parties. ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may change their respective staff

contacts and administrative information without the concurrence of either parry.

3. ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND CULTURAL RESOURCES

RECIPIENT shall take reasonable action to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to archeological and historic

resources. The RECIPIENT must agree to hold harmless the State of Washington in relation to any claim related to

historical or cultural artifacts discovered, disturbed, or damaged due to the RECIPIENT's project funded under this

Agreement.

RECIPIENT shall:

a) Contact the ECOLOGY Program issuing the grant or loan to discuss any Cultural Resources requirements for their

project:
. For capital construction projects or land acquisitions for capital construction projects, if required, comply with

Governor Executive Order 05-05, Archaeology and Cultural Resources.

. For projects with any federal involvement, if required, comply with the National Historic Preservation Act.

. Any cultural resources federal or state requirements must be completed prior to the start of any work on the project

site.

b) If required by the ECOLOGY Program, submit an Inadvertent Discovery Plan (IDP) to ECOLOGY prior to

implementing any project that involves ground disturbing activities. ECOLOGY will provide the IDP form.

RECIPIENT shall:
. Keep the IDP at the project site.
. Make the IDP readily available to anyone working at the project site.

. Discuss the IDP with staff and contractors working at the project site.

. Implement the IDP when cultural resources or human remains are found at the project site.

c) If any archeological or historic resources are found while conducting work under this Agreement:
. Immediately stop work and notifu the ECOLOGY Program, the Department of Archaeology and Historic

Preservation at (360) 586-3064, any affected Tribe, and the local govemment.

d) If any human remains are found while conducting work under this Agreement:

Version l0/30/201 5

Page 16 of 24

Item 7 - 17

78



State of Washington Department of Ecolory
Agreement No: SEASMP-1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

. Immediately stop work and notifu the local Law Enforcement Agency or Medical Examiner/Coroner's Office, and

then the ECOLOGY Program.

e) Comply with RCW 27.53, RCW 27.44.055, and RCW 68.50.645, and all other applicable local, state, and federal

laws protecting cultural resources and human remains.

4. ASSIGNMENT
No right or claim of the RECIPIENT arising under this Agreement shall be transferred or assigned by the RECIPIENT

5. COMMUNICATION
RECIPIENT shall make every effort to maintain effective communications with the RECIPIENT's designees,

ECOLOGY, all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions, and any interested individuals or groups.

6, COMPENSATION
a) Any work performed prior to effective date of this Agreement will be at the sole expense and risk of the

RECIPIENT. ECOLOGY must sign the Agreement before any payment requests can be submitted.

b) Payments will be made on a reimbursable basis for approved and completed work as specified in this Agreement.

c) RECIPIENT is responsible to determine if costs are eligible. Any questions regarding eligibility should be clarified

with ECOLOGY prior to incurring costs. Costs thal are conditionally eligible require approval by ECOLOGY prior to

expenditure.

d) RECIPIENT shall not invoice more than once per month unless agreed on by ECOLOGY.

e) ECOLOGY will not process payment requests without the proper reimbursement forms, Progress Report and

supporting documentation. ECOLOGY will provide instructions for submitting payment requests.

0 ECOLOGY will pay the RECIPIENT thirty (30) days after receipt of a properly completed request for payment.

g) RECIPIENT will receive payment through Washington State Department of Enterprise Services' Statewide Payee

Desk. RECIPIENT must register as a payee by submitting a Statewide Payee Registration form and an IRS W-9 form

at the website, http://www.des.wa.gov/services/ContractingPurchasing/Business/VendorPay/Pages/default.aspx. For

any questions about the vendor registration process contact the Statewide Payee Help Desk at (360) 407-8180 or email

payeehelpdesk@watech.wa. gov.

h) ECOLOGY may, at its sole discretion, withhold payments claimed by the RECIPIENT if the RECIPIENT fails to

satisfactorily comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.

i) Monies withheld by ECOLOGY may be paid to the RECIPIENT when the work described herein, or a portion

thereof, has been completed if, at ECOLOGY's sole discretion, such payment is reasonable and approved according to

this Agreement, as appropriate, or upon completion of an audit as specified herein.

j) RECIPIENT must submit within thirty (30) days after the expiration date of this Agreement, all financial,

performance, and other reports required by this agreement. Failure to comply may result in delayed reimbursement.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH ALLLAWS
RECIPIENT agrees to comply fully with all applicable federal, state and local laws, orders, regulations, and permits

related to this Agreement, including but not limited to:

a) RECIPIENT agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies of the United States and the State

of Washington which affect wages and job safety.

b) RECIPIENT agrees to be bound by all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and policies against

discrimination.
c) RECIPIENT certifies full compliance with all applicable state industrial insurance requirements.

d) RECIPIENT agrees to secure and provide assurance to ECOLOGY that all the necessary approvals and permits

required by authorities having jurisdiction over the project are obtained. RECIPIENT must include time in their project

timeline for the permit and approval processes.

Page 17 of 24

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 18

79



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- I 7l 9-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

ECOLOGY shall have the right to immediately terminate for cause this Agreement as provided herein if the

RECTPIENT fails to comply with above requirements.

If any provision of this Agreement violates any statute or rule of law of the state of Washington, it is considered

modified to conform to that statute or rule of law.

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RECIPIENT and ECOLOGY agree that any officer, member, agent, or employee, who exercises any function or

responsibility in the review, approval, or carrying out of this Agreement, shall not have any personal or financial

interest, direct or indirect, nor affect the interest ofany cotporation, partnership, or association in which he/she is a part,

in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

9. CONTRACTING FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

RECIPIENT may contract to buy goods or services related to its performance under this Agreement. RECIPIENT shall

award all contracts for construction, purchase ofgoods, equipment, services, and professional architectural and

engineering services through a competitive process, if required by State law. RECIPIENT is required to follow

procurement procedures that ensure legal, fair, and open competition.

RECIPIENT must have a standard procurement process or follow current state procurement procedures. RECIPIENT

may be required to provide written certification that they have followed their standard procurement procedures and

applicable state law in awarding contracts under this Agreement.

ECOLOGY reserves the right to inspect and request copies of all procurement documentation, and review procurement

practices related to this Agreement. Any costs incurred as a result of procurement practices not in compliance with

state procurement law or the RECIPIENT's normal procedures may be disallowed at ECOLOGY's sole discretion.

10. DISPUTES

When there is a dispute with regard to the extent and character of the work, or any other matter related to this

Agreement the determination of ECOLOGY will govern, although the RECIPIENT shall have the right to appeal

decisions as provided for below:

a) RECIPIENT notifies the funding program of an appeal request.

b) Appeal request must be in writing and state the disputed issue(s).

c) RECIPIENT has the opportunity to be heard and offer evidence in support of its appeal.

d) ECOLOGY reviews the RECIPIENT's appeal.

e) ECOLOGY sends a written answer within ten ( I 0) business days, unless more time is needed, after concluding the

review.

The decision of ECOLOGY from an appeal will be final and conclusive, unless within thirty (30) days from the date of
such decision, the RECIPIENT furnishes to the Director of ECOLOGY a written appeal. The decision of the Director or

duly authorized representative will be final and conclusive.

The parties agree that this dispute process will precede any action in ajudicial or quasi-judicial tribunal.

Appeals of the Director's decision will be brought in the Superior Court of Thurston County. Review of the Director's

decision will not be taken to Environmental and Land Use Hearings Office.

Pending final decision of a dispute, the RECIPIENT agrees to proceed diligently with the performance of this

Agreement and in accordance with the decision rendered.

Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to limit the parties' choice of another mutually acceptable method, in

addition to the dispute resolution procedure outlined above.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL DATA STANDARDS

a) RECIPIENT shall prepare a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) for a project that collects or uses

environmental measurement data. RECIPIENTS unsure about whether a QAPP is required for their project shall contact

Page l8 of24

Version 10/30/2015
Item 7 - 19

80



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-I719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

the ECOLOGY Program issuing the grant or loan. If a QAPP is required, the RECIPIENT shall:
. Use ECOLOGY's QAPP Template/Checklist provided by the ECOLOGY, unless ECOLOGY Quality Assurance

(QA) officer or the Program QA coordinator instructs otherwise.
. Follow ECOLOGY's Guidelines for Preparing Quality Assurance Project Plans for Environmental Studies, July

2004 (Ecology Publication No. 04-03-030).
. Submit the QAPP to ECOLOGY for review and approval before the start of the work.

b) RECIPIENT shall submit environmental datathat was collected on a project to ECOLOGY using the

Environmental Information Management system (EIM), unless the ECOLOGY Program instructs otherwise. The

RECIPIENT must confirm with ECOLOGY that complete and correct data was successfully loaded into EIM, find

instructions at: hIIp:l lwww.ecy.wa.gov/eim.

c) RECIPIENT shall follow ECOLOGY's data standards when Geographic Information System (GIS) data is collected

and processed. Guidelines for Creating and Accessing GIS Data are available at:

https://ecology.wa.gov/Research-Data./Data-resources/Geographic-lnformation-Systems-GIS/Standards. RECIPIENT,

when requested by ECOLOGY, shall provide copies to ECOLOGY of all final GIS data layers, imagery, related tables,

raw data collection files, map products, and all metadataand project documentation.

12. GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Washington, and the venue of any action brought

hereunder will be in the Superior Court of Thurston County.

13. INDEMNIFICATION
ECOLOGY will in no way be held responsible for payment of salaries, consultant's fees, and other costs related to the

project described herein, except as provided in the Scope of Work.

To the extent that the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington permit, each party will indemnify and hold the

other harmless from and against any liability for any or all injuries to persons or property arising from the negligent act

or omission of that party or that party's agents or employees arising out of this Agreement.

14. INDEPENDENT STATUS

The employees, volunteers, or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this Agreement will continue

to be employees, volunteers, or agents ofthat party and will not for any purpose be employees, volunteers, or agents of
the other party.

15. KICKBACKS
RECIPIENT is prohibited from inducing by any means any person employed or otherwise involved in this Agreement

to give up any part of the compensation to which he/she is otherwise entitled to or receive any fee, commission, or gift

in return for award ofa subcontract hereunder.

16. MINORITY AND WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (MWBE)

RECIPIENT is encouraged to solicit and recruit, to the extent possible, certified minority-owned (MBE) and

women-owned (WBE) businesses in purchases and contracts initiated under this Agreement.

Contract awards or rejections cannot be made based on MWBE participation; however, the RECIPIENT is encouraged

to take the following actions, when possible, in any procurement under this Agreement:

a) Include qualified minority and women's businesses on solicitation lists whenever they are potential sources of goods

or services.

b) Divide the total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities, to permit maximum

participation by qualified minority and women's businesses.

c) Establish delivery schedules, where work requirements permit, which will encourage participation of qualified

Page 19 of24

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 20

81



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- l7l 9-MarCDD-0002 I

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

minority and women's businesses.

d) Use the services and assistance of the Washington State Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises

(OMWBE) (866-208-1064) and the Office of Minority Business Enterprises of the U.S. Department of Commerce, as

appropriate.

17. ORDEROFPRECEDENCE
In the event of inconsistency in this Agreement, unless otherwise provided herein, the inconsistency shall be resolved

by giving precedence in the following order: (a) applicable federal and state statutes and regulations; (b) The

Agreement; (c) Scope of Work; (d) Special Terms and Conditions;(e) Any provisions or terms incorporated herein by

reference, including the "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology Grants and Loans"; and (f) the

General Terms and Conditions.

18. PRESENTATION AND PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS

ECOLOGY reserves the right to approve RECIPIENT's communication documents and materials related to the

fulfillment of this Agreement:

a) If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide a draft copy to ECOLOGY for review and approval ten (10) business days

prior to production and distribution.

b) RECIPIENT shall include time for ECOLOGY's review and approval process in their project timeline.

c) If requested, RECIPIENT shall provide ECOLOGY two (2) final copies and an electronic copy of any tangible

products developed.

Copies include any printed materials, and all tangible products developed such as brochures, manuals, pamphlets,

videos, audio tapes, CDs, curriculum, posters, media announcements, or gadgets with a message, such as a refrigerator

magnet, and any online communications, such as web pages, blogs, and twitter campaigns. If it is not practical to

provide a copy, then the RECIPIENT shall provide a description (photographs, drawings, printouts, etc.) that best

represents the item.

Any communications intended for public distribution that uses ECOLOGY's logo shall comply with ECOLOGY's

graphic requirements and any additional requirements specified in this Agreement. Before the use of ECOLOGY's

logo contact ECOLOGY for guidelines.

RECIPIENT shall acknowledge in the communications that funding was provided by ECOLOGY.

19. PROGRESS REPORTING

a) RECIPIENT must satisfactorily demonstrate the timely use of funds by submitting payment requests and progress

reports to ECOLOGY. ECOLOGY reserves the right to amend or terminate this Agreement if the RECIPIENT does

not document timely use of funds.

b) RECIPIENT must submit a progress report with each payment request. Payment requests will not be processed

without a progress report. ECOLOGY will define the elements and frequency of progress reports.

c) RECIPIENT shall use ECOLOGY's provided progress report format.

d) Quarterly progress reports will cover the periods from January 1 through March 31, April 1 through June 30, July 1

through September 30, and October 1 through December 31. Reports shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after

the end ofthe quarter being reported.

e) RECIPIENT must submit within thirty (30) days of the expiration date of the project, unless an extension has been

approved by ECOLOGY, all financial, performance, and other repofis required by the agreement and funding program

guidelines. RECIPIENT shall use the ECOLOGY provided closeout report format.

20. PROPERTY RIGHTS

a) Copyrights and Patents. When the RECIPIENT creates any copyrightable materials or invents any patentable

property under this Agreement, the RECIPIENT may copyright or patent the same but ECOLOGY retains a royalty free,

nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, recover, or otherwise use the material(s) or property, and to

Page 20 of 24

Version I 0/30/201 5

Item 7 - 21

82



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP- 1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

authorize others to use the same for federal, state, or local government purposes.

b) Publications. When the RECIPIENT or persons employed by the RECIPIENT use or publish ECOLOGY

information; present papers, lectures, or seminars involving information supplied by ECOLOGY; or use logos, reports,

maps, or other data in printed reports, signs, brochures, pamphlets, etc., appropriate credit shall be given to ECOLOGY.

c) Presentation and Promotional Materials. ECOLOGY shall have the right to use or reproduce any printed or graphic

materials produced in fulfillment of this Agreement, in any manner ECOLOGY deems appropriate. ECOLOGY shall

acknowledge the RECIPIENT as the sole copyright owner in every use or reproduction of the materials.

d) Tangible Property Rights. ECOLOGY's current edition of "Administrative Requirements for Recipients of Ecology

Grants and Loans," shall control the use and disposition ofall real and personal property purchased wholly or in part

with funds furnished by ECOLOGY in the absence of state and federal statutes, regulations, or policies to the contrary,

or upon specific instructions with respect thereto in this Agreement.

e) Personal Property Furnished by ECOLOGY. When ECOLOGY provides personal property directly to the

RECIPIENT for use in performance of the project, it shall be returned to ECOLOGY prior to final payment by

ECOLOGY. If said property is lost, stolen, or damaged while in the RECIPIENT's possession, then ECOLOGY shall

be reimbursed in cash or by setoff by the RECIPIENT for the fair market value of such properfy.

f) Acquisition Projects. The following provisions shall apply if the project covered by this Agreement includes funds

for the acquisition of land or facilities:

1. RECIPIENT shall establish that the cost is fair value and reasonable prior to disbursement of funds provided for in

this Agreement.

2. RECIPIENT shall provide satisfactory evidence of title or ability to acquire title for each parcel prior to

disbursement of funds provided by this Agreement. Such evidence may include title insurance policies, Torrens

certificates, or abstracts, and attomey's opinions establishing that the land is free from any impediment, lien, or claim

which would impair the uses intended by this Agreement.

g) Conversions. Regardless of the Agreement expiration date, the RECIPIENT shall not at any time convert any

equipment, property, or facility acquired or developed under this Agreement to uses other than those for which

assistance was originally approved without prior written approval of ECOLOGY. Such approval may be conditioned

upon payment to ECOLOGY of that portion of the proceeds of the sale, lease, or other conversion or encumbrance

which monies granted pursuant to this Agreement bear to the total acquisition, purchase, or construction costs of such

property.

21. RECORDS, AUDITS, AND INSPECTIONS

RECIPIENT shall maintain complete program and financial records relating to this Agreement, including any

engineering documentation and field inspection reports of all construction work accomplished.

All records shall:

a) Be kept in a manner which provides an audit trail for all expenditures.

b) Be kept in a common file to facilitate audits and inspections.

c) Clearly indicate total receipts and expenditures related to this Agreement.

d) Be open for audit or inspection by ECOLOGY, or by any duly authorized audit representative of the State of
Washington, for a period of at least three (3) years after the final grant payment or loan repayment, or any dispute

resolution hereunder.

RECIPIENT shall provide clarification and make necessary adjustments if any audits or inspections identifu

discrepancies in the records.

ECOLOGY reserves the right to audit, or have a designated third party audit, applicable records to ensure that the state

has been properly invoiced. Any remedies and penalties allowed by law to recover monies determined owed will be

enforced. Repetitive instances of incorrect invoicing or inadequate records may be considered cause for termination.

All work performed under this Agreement and any property and equipment purchased shall be made available to

ECOLOGY and to any authorized state, federal or local representative for inspection at any time during the course of

Page 2l of 24

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 22

83



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

this Agreement and for at least three (3) years following grant or loan termination or dispute resolution hereunder.

RECIPIENT shall provide right of access to ECOLOGY, or any other authorized representative, at all reasonable times,

in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and any other conditions under this Agreement.

22. RECOVERYOFFUNDS
The right of the RECIPIENT to retain monies received as reimbursement payments is contingent upon satisfactory

performance of this Agreement and completion of the work described in the Scope of Work.

All payments to the RECIPIENT are subject to approval and audit by ECOLOGY, and any unauthorized expenditure(s)

or unallowable cost charged to this Agreement shall be refunded to ECOLOGY by the RECIPIENT.

RECIPIENT shall refund to ECOLOGY the full amount of any erroneous payment or overpayment under this

Agreement.

RECIPIENT shall refund by check payable to ECOLOGY the amount of any such reduction of payments or repayments

within thirty (30) days of a written notice. Interest will accrue at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per year from the

time ECOLOGY demands repayment of funds.

Any property acquired under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, may become ECOLOGY's property and the

RECIPIENT's liability to repay monies will be reduced by an amount reflecting the fair value of such property.

23. SEVERABILITY
If any provision of this Agreement or any provision of any document incorporated by reference shall be held invalid,

such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid

provision, and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.

24. STATE ENVTRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA)

RECIPIENT must demonstrate to ECOLOGY's satisfaction that compliance with the requirements of the State

Environmental Policy Act (Chapter 43.21C RCW and Chapter 197-ll WAC) have been or will be met. Any

reimbursements are subject to this provision.

25. ST]SPENSION

When in the best interest of ECOLOGY, ECOLOGY may at any time, and without cause, suspend this Agreement or

any portion thereof for a temporary period by written notice from ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT. RECIPIENT shall

resume performance on the next business day following the suspension period unless another day is specified by

ECOLOGY.

26. SUSTAINABLE PRACTICES

In order to sustain Washington's natural resources and ecosystems, the RECIPIENT is fully encouraged to implement

sustainable practices and to purchase environmentally preferable products under this Agreement.

a) Sustainable practices may include such activities as: use ofclean energy, use ofdouble-sided printing, hosting low

impact meetings, and setting up recycling and composting programs.

b) Purchasing may include such items as: sustainably produced products and services, EPEAT registered computers

and imaging equipment, independently certified green cleaning products, remanufactured toner cartridges, products

with reduced packaging, office products that are refillable, rechargeable, and recyclable, and 100o/o post-consumer

recycled paper.

For more suggestions visit ECOLOGY's web page: Green Purchasing, ,

https://ecology.wa.gov/Regulations-Permits/Guidance-technical-assistance/Sustainable-purchasing.

27. TERMINATION
a) For Cause

ECOLOGY may terminate for cause this Agreement with a seven (7) calendar days prior written notification to the

Page22 of24

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 23

84



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No: SEASMP-1719-MarCDD-00021

Project Title: Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Recipient Name: Marysville, City of

RECIPIENT, at the sole discretion of ECOLOGY, for failing to perform an Agreement requirement or for a material

breach of any term or condition. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance

rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

Failure to Commence Work. ECOLOGY reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if RECIPIENT fails to

commence work on the project funded within four (4) months after the effective date of this Agreement, or by any date

mutually agreed upon in writing for commencement of work, or the time period defined within the Scope of Work.

Non-Performance. The obligation of ECOLOGY to the RECIPIENT is contingent upon satisfactory performance by the

RECIPIENT of all of its obligations under this Agreement. In the event the RECIPIENT unjustifiably fails, in the

opinion of ECOLOGY, to perform any obligation required of it by this Agreement, ECOLOGY may refuse to pay any

further funds, terminate in whole or in part this Agreement, and exercise any other rights under this Agreement.

Despite the above, the RECIPIENT shall not be relieved of any liability to ECOLOGY for damages sustained by

ECOLOGY and the State of Washington because of any breach of this Agreement by the RECIPIENT. ECOLOGY

may withhold payments for the purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due ECOLOGY from

the RECIPIENT is determined.

b) For Convenience

ECOLOGY may terminate for convenience this Agreement, in whole or in part, for any reason when it is the best

interest of ECOLOGY, with a thirty (30) calendar days prior written notification to the RECIPIENT, except as noted

below. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance rendered or costs incurred in

accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the effective date of termination.

Non-Allocation of Funds. ECOLOGY's ability to make payments is contingent on availability of funding. In the event

funding from state, federal or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way after the effective date and

prior to the completion or expiration date of this Agreement, ECOLOGY, at its sole discretion, may elect to terminate

the Agreement, in whole or part, or renegotiate the Agreement, subject to new funding limitations or conditions.

ECOLOGY may also elect to suspend performance of the Agreement until ECOLOGY determines the funding

insufficiency is resolved. ECOLOGY may exercise any of these options with no notification or restrictions, although

ECOLOGY will make a reasonable attempt to provide notice.

In the event of termination or suspension, ECOLOGY will reimburse eligible costs incurred by the recipienVcontractor

through the effective date of termination or suspension. Reimbursed costs must be agreed to by ECOLOGY and the

recipient/contractor. In no event shall ECOLOGY's reimbursement exceed ECOLOGY's total responsibility under the

agreement and any amendments.

If payments have been discontinued by ECOLOGY due to unavailable funds, the RECIPIENT shall not be obligated to

repay monies which had been paid to the RECIPIENT prior to such termination.

RECIPIENT's obligation to continue or complete the work described in this Agreement shall be contingent upon

availability of funds by the RECIPIENT's goveming body.

c) By Mutual Agreement

ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in pafi, at any time, by mutual written

agreement.

d) In Event of Termination
All finished or unfinished documents, data studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, reports or other

materials prepared by the RECIPIENT under this Agreement, at the option of ECOLOGY, will become property of
ECOLOGY and the RECIPIENT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work

Page23 of24

Version l0/30/2015
Item 7 - 24

85



State of Washington Department of Ecology

Agreement No:
Project Title:

Recipient Name.

SEASMP- I 7 I 9-MarCDD-0002 1

Shoreline Master Program - Periodic Review

Marysville" City of

Page24 of24

completed on such documents and other materials.

Nothing contained herein shall preclude ECOLOGY from demanding repayment of all funds paid to the RECIPIENT in

accordance with Recovery of Funds, identified herein.

28. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY
RECIPIENT shall ensure that in all subcontracts entered into by the RECIPIENT pursuant to this Agreement, the state

of Washington is named as an express third party beneficiary of such subcontracts with full rights as such.

29. WAIVER
Waiver of a default or breach of any provision of this Agreement is not a waiver of any subsequent default or breach,

and will not be construed as a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless stated as such in writing by the

authorized representative of ECOLOGY.

Version 10/30/2015

Item 7 - 25

86



Index #8
 

87



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  May 29, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution Authorizing RCO Grant Application for LWCF Legacy Program 
PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  
Jim Ballew   

DEPARTMENT:   
Parks, Culture and Recreation 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT:   
  
SUMMARY:   

 
 
A Resolution authorizing the application for grant funding is a requirement of the Recreation 
Conservation Office. A Resolution is attached for authorizing the grant application request for the 
Mother Nature’s Window Park Project through the Land and Water Conservation Legacy 
Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the City Council consider authorizing the Mayor to sign the attached Resolution 
for the Mother Nature’s Window Park Project #18-2176 as required by the Recreation 
Conservation Office. 
 

Item 8 - 1

88



 

 
 
 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Marysville, Washington 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACT ON 
BEHALF OF THE CITY IN REGARD TO GRANTS FROM THE 
WASHINGTON STATE RECREATION AND CONSERVATION OFFICE 
AND RATIFYING ACTIONS TAKEN IN REGARD TO THE MOTHER 
NATURE’S WINDOW PARK PROJECT. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to obtain grant funding from the state Recreation and 
Conservation Office Land and Water Conservation Legacy Program for the following project: 
Mother Nature’s Window Park Project 

 
WHEREAS, the mayor is the appropriate person to act on behalf of the City in regard to 

these grant applications; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to ratify and affirm any actions taken by the 

mayor or his designee in regard to this project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MARYSVILLE the mayor is authorized to sign the “Recreation and Conservation Office 
Applicant Resolution/Authorization” attached as Exhibit A. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MARYSVILLE that all actions taken by the mayor or his designee in regard to this project is 
ratified by this resolution. 

 
 

ADOPTED by the City Council at an open public meeting this _________ day of 
____________________, 2018. 
 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

By       
JON NEHRING, MAYOR 

 
Attest: 
 

By        
_______________, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

 
Approved as to form: 

Item 8 - 2

89



 

 

By        
JON WALKER, CITY ATTORNEY 

 

 

Item 8 - 3

90



 

 

 

EXHIBIT  A 
 

Recreation and Conservation Office 
Applicant Resolution/Authorization  

 

Organization Name (sponsor):  CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

Resolution No. (if applicable)________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Name and Project Number 
 
Olympic View Park (Development) #16-1843 
This resolution/authorization authorizes the person identified below (in section 2) to act as the authorized 
representative/agent on behalf of our organization and to legally bind our organization with respect to the 
above Project(s) for which we seek grant funding assistance managed through the Recreation and 
Conservation Office (Office). 

WHEREAS, state grant assistance is requested by our organization to aid in financing the cost of the Project(s) 
referenced above;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:  

1. Our organization has applied for or intends to apply for funding assistance managed by the Office for the 
above “Project(s).” 

2. Mayor Jon Nehring is authorized to act as a representative/agent for our organization with full authority to 
bind the organization regarding all matters related to the Project(s), including but not limited to, full 
authority to: (1) approve submittal of a grant application to the Office, (2) enter into a project agreement(s) 
on behalf of our organization, (3) sign any amendments thereto on behalf of our organization, (4) make 
any decisions and submissions required with respect to the Project(s), and (5) designate a project 
contact(s) to implement the day-to-day management of the grant(s).  

3. Our organization has reviewed the sample project agreement on the Recreation and Conservation Office’s 
WEBSITE at: https://rco.wa.gov/documents/manuals&forms/SampleProjAgreement.pdf.  We understand 
and acknowledge that if offered a project agreement to sign in the future, it will contain an 
indemnification and legal venue stipulation (applicable to any sponsor) and a waiver of sovereign 
immunity (applicable to Tribes) and other terms and conditions substantially in the form contained in the 
sample project agreement and that such terms and conditions of any signed project agreement shall be 
legally binding on the sponsor if our representative/agent enters into a project agreement on our behalf.  
The Office reserves the right to revise the project agreement prior to execution and shall communicate 
any such revisions with the above authorized representative/agent before execution.   

4. Our organization acknowledges and warrants, after conferring with its legal counsel, that its authorized 
representative/agent has full legal authority to enter into a project agreement(s) on its behalf, that 
includes indemnification, waiver of sovereign immunity (as may apply to Tribes), and stipulated legal 
venue for lawsuits and other terms substantially in the form contained in the sample project agreement or 
as may be revised prior to execution. 

Item 8 - 4

91

https://rco.wa.gov/documents/manuals&forms/SampleProjAgreement.pdf


 

 
5. Grant assistance is contingent on a signed project agreement.  Entering into any project agreement with 

the Office is purely voluntary on our part. 

6. Our organization understands that grant policies and requirements vary depending on the grant program 
applied to, the grant program and source of funding in the project agreement, the characteristics of the 
project, and the characteristics of our organization.  

7. Our organization further understands that prior to our authorized representative/agent executing the 
project agreement(s), the RCO may make revisions to its sample project agreement and that such 
revisions could include the indemnification, the waiver of sovereign immunity, and the legal venue 
stipulation.  Our organization accepts the legal obligation that we shall, prior to execution of the project 
agreement(s), confer with our authorized representative/agent as to any revisions to the project 
agreement from that of the sample project agreement.  We also acknowledge and accept that if our 
authorized representative/agent executes the project agreement(s) with any such revisions, all terms and 
conditions of the executed project agreement (including but not limited to the indemnification, the waiver 
of sovereign immunity, and the legal venue stipulation) shall be conclusively deemed to be executed with 
our authorization.   

8. Any grant assistance received will be used for only direct eligible and allowable costs that are reasonable 
and necessary to implement the project(s) referenced above. 

9. Our organization acknowledges and warrants, after conferring with its legal counsel, that no additional 
legal authorization beyond this authorization is required to make the indemnification, the waiver of 
sovereign immunity (as may apply to Tribes), and the legal venue stipulation substantially in form shown 
on the sample project agreement or as may be revised prior to execution legally binding on our 
organization upon execution by our representative/agent. 
 

10. If match is required for the grant, we understand our organization must certify the availability of match at 
least one month before funding approval. In addition, our organization understands it is responsible for 
supporting all non-cash matching share commitments to this project should they not materialize. 

11. Our organization acknowledges that if it receives grant funds managed by the Office, the Office will pay us 
on only a reimbursement basis. We understand reimbursement basis means that we will only request 
payment from the Office after we incur grant eligible and allowable costs and pay them. The Office may 
also determine an amount of retainage and hold that amount until the Project is complete.    

12. Our organization acknowledges that any property acquired with grant assistance must be dedicated for 
the purposes of the grant in perpetuity unless otherwise agreed to in writing by our organization and the 
Office. We agree to dedicate the property in a signed “Deed of Right” for fee acquisitions, or an 
“Assignment of Rights” for other than fee acquisitions (which documents will be based upon the Office’s 
standard versions of those documents), to be recorded on the title of the property with the county 
auditor. 

13. Our organization acknowledges that any property acquired in fee title must be immediately made 
available to the public unless otherwise provided for in policy, the project agreement, or authorized in 
writing by the Office Director. 

14. Our organization acknowledges that any property owned by our organization that is developed, 
renovated, enhanced, or restored with grant assistance must be dedicated for the purpose of the grant in 
perpetuity unless otherwise allowed by grant program policy, or Office in writing and per the project 
agreement or an amendment thereto. 

15. Our organization acknowledges that any property not owned by our organization that is developed, 
renovated, enhanced, or restored with grant assistance must be dedicated for the purpose of the 
grant as required by grant program policies unless otherwise provided for per the project agreement 
or an amendment thereto. 

Item 8 - 5

92



 

    
16.  Our organization certifies the following: the Project does not conflict with the Puget Sound Action Agenda 

developed by the Puget Sound Partnership under RCW 90.71.310. 

17. This resolution/authorization is deemed to be part of the formal grant application to the Office. 

18. Our organization warrants and certifies, after conferring with its legal counsel, that this 
resolution/authorization was properly and lawfully adopted following the requirements of our 
organization and applicable laws and policies and that our organization has full legal authority to commit 
our organization to the warranties, certifications, promises and obligations set forth herein. 

This application authorization was adopted by our organization during the meeting held: 

 

Location: CITY OF MARYSVILLE CITY HALL 1049 STATE AVENUE, MARYSVILLE WA. 98270 

 Date: May 29, 2018   

 

Signed and approved on behalf of the resolving body of the organization by the following authorized 
member(s):  

 

Signed              

 

Title       Date       

 

 

Washington State Attorney General’s Office 

Approved as to form _____ _______________1/19/18_____________________ 

   Assistant Attorney General  Date 

You may reproduce the above language in your own format; text however may not change. 

Item 8 - 6

93



Index #12
 

94



 CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM:   
 
Consider Approval for Mayor’s Signature two Easement 
Encroachment Agreements for a Garage and a Gazebo between 
the City of Marysville and Trevor and Julie Trueax 
 

AGENDA SECTION: 
  

PREPARED BY: 
 
John Dorcas, Building Official 
 

AGENDA NUMBER: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Garage Easement Encroachment Agreement between Trevor 

P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax and the City. 
 
2. Gazebo Easement Encroachment Agreement between Trevor 

P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax and the City. 
 

 

APPROVED BY: 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

 
Two structures were built upon the property of Trevor P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax, located at 
8307 80th Drive NE, Marysville WA 98270.  These structures were constructed without first 
obtaining necessary building permits, do not meet setback requirements, and were constructed 
over a portion of the City’s sewer easement.  The garage is approximately 576 square feet and the 
gazebo is approximately 512 square feet. 
 
The Trueax’s requested that the City work with them to retain the structures for up to ten (10) 
years.  The proposed Easement Encroachment Agreements set forth the terms and conditions 
under which the City would allow the structures to remain on the property for this period of time. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Approve for Mayor’s Signature two Easement Encroachment Agreements for a Garage and a 
Gazebo between the City of Marysville and Trevor and Julie Trueax 
 
 

Item 12 - 1

95



Page 1 of 13 
 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

 
City Clerk’s Office 

City of Marysville 

1049 State Avenue 

Marysville, WA 98270 

360-363-8000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document Title: Easement Encroachment Agreement 

Grantor: The City of Marysville   

Grantee: Trevor P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax, husband and wife 

 

Abbreviated Legal Description: LOT 42, THE HILL. 

Assessor's Tax/Parcel Number: 00877600004200 

Additional Legal Description on page 10 

 

Easement Encroachment Agreement 

This Easement Encroachment Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Marysville 

(the “City”) and Trevor P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax, husband and wife (collectively the 

“Owner”) on the _____ day of ___________, 2018. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the property commonly known as 8307 80th Drive 

NE, Marysville WA 98270, the legal description of which is attached as Exhibit A and 

incorporated into this Agreement (the “Property”); 

WHEREAS, the City has a sewer easement affecting the property as shown in the plat 

recorded under Auditor’s File Number 9802275002, the portion of which evidencing the sewer 

easement is shown in Exhibit B, which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement (the 

“Easement”); 

Item 12 - 2

96



Page 2 of 13 
 

WHEREAS, the Owner has constructed a garage of approximately 576 square feet as 

shown in Exhibit C, which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement (the “Encroaching 

Structure”); 

WHEREAS, the Encroaching Structure is located on a portion of the Property as shown in 

Exhibit D, which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Encroaching Structure was built over a portion of the Easement and thus 

encroaches upon the Easement; 

WHEREAS, the Encroaching Structure is currently used to house vehicles and for general 

storage purposes; 

WHEREAS, the Encroaching Structure was constructed without necessary building 

permits and does not meet the requirements of the City’s municipal code, including without 

limitation property or easement setback requirements; 

WHEREAS, the City will allow the Encroaching Structure to remain on the Property and 

the affected Easement area under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Owner agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Permission Granted.  The City, in consideration of the covenants and agreements contained 

in this Agreement, to be kept and performed by the Owner, hereby grants permission to the Owner 

to encroach on the Easement for the purposes of using and maintaining the Encroaching Structure.  

The rights contained in this Agreement shall not apply to any other encroachments into or onto the 

Easement, existing either now or in the future. 

2. Term and Termination. 

a. Term.  The term of this Agreement will be ten (10) years from the date the 

Agreement is executed by the City. 

b. Termination.  This Agreement will terminate on any of the following 

events:  

 (i)   Expiration of the term of this Agreement;  

(ii)   Default of the terms of this Agreement and notification of 

termination as provided in Section 10. 

(iii)   The Encroaching Structure is removed from the Easement and the 

affected Easement area is restored to a substantially similar or better condition than 

it was in prior to the construction of the Encroaching Structure. 

3. Use; Maintenance.  All use, repairs, and maintenance of the Encroaching Structure will be 

performed in strict compliance with this Agreement and with all applicable federal, state, and local 

laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, and regulations, and the City may access and inspect the 

Item 12 - 3

97



Page 3 of 13 
 

Encroaching Structure to ensure compliance with the same.  All costs associated with the use, 

maintenance, and repair of the Encroaching Structure will be exclusively borne and paid for by the 

Owner. 

4. Change in Use Prohibited.  The Owner will use the Encroaching Structure solely for the 

housing of vehicles and for general storage purposes, and will not materially alter the use of the 

Encroaching Structure.  A material change in the use of the Encroaching Structure will constitute 

a default of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10. 

5. Further Construction Prohibited.  The Owner will not expand or otherwise cause the 

Encroaching Structure or any associated appurtenances to further infringe in or on the Easement 

beyond what is shown in Exhibit C and Exhibit D.  Expansion of the Encroaching Structure in or 

on the Easement will constitute a default of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10. 

6. Right of Access.  The City will have the right to access the Easement and all parts of the 

Encroaching Structure, including without limitation its interior.  Upon gaining access the City will 

have the right to make any alterations to the Encroaching Structure and Easement, including 

without limitation breaking locks, breaching doors, removing walls, cutting into the foundation, 

digging into the ground, and fully demolishing the Encroaching Structure.  The City will in no way 

be liable to the Owner for any damage to the Property, Encroaching Structure, or personal property 

caused by its accessing or altering the Easement or Encroaching Structure.  All costs the City 

incurs in making alterations to the Encroaching Structure will be the responsibility of the Owner, 

and the Owner will reimburse the City for the same.  The City will have the right to access the 

interior of the Encroaching Structure by providing notice to the Owner according to the following 

terms: 

a. Non-Emergency Access.  The City may access the Encroaching Structure 

for any reason upon seven (7) days’ written notice to the Owner. 

b. Emergency Access.  The City may access the Encroaching Structure in an 

emergency situation upon twelve (12) hours’ notice to the Owner.  In the event the City is 

unable to reach the Owner after attempting to provide notice, or the Owner does not 

respond to the City within that twelve (12) hour period, the City may enter into the 

Encroaching Structure without permission from the Owner, and the City may break any 

locks or breach any doors or walls to gain said access, and pursuant to this Section any 

resultant damages to the Property, Encroaching Structure, or any personal property shall 

be borne by the Owner, and the City will in no way have any responsibility to make repairs 

or reimburse the Owner for resultant damages.  For the purposes of this Section, an 

“emergency situation” is any situation that the City, in its sole discretion, determines to 

require immediate or timely access to the Encroaching Structure, including without 

limitation a need to repair pipes or sewer lines. 

7. Removal of Encroaching Structure by the Owner.   

a. Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement, the Owner will 

remove the Encroaching Structure and return the Easement to a substantially similar or 

Item 12 - 4

98



Page 4 of 13 
 

better condition than it was in prior to the construction of the Encroaching Structure.  The 

Owner will be responsible for all costs associated with the removal of the Encroaching 

Structure and subsequent restoration, and the City will not be responsible for any of the 

costs thereof.  All removal and restoration work as contemplated in this Section will be 

done to the satisfaction of the City. 

b. Prior to Conveyance.  The Owner will not sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise 

convey the Property or the Encroaching Structure to any individual, entity, or other party 

without first removing the Encroaching Structure. 

8. Removal of the Encroaching Structure by the City.  If the Owner fails to remove the 

Encroaching Structure when required by this Agreement, or if the Owner fails to restore the 

Easement to a substantially similar or better condition than it was in prior to the construction of 

the Encroaching Structure, then the City may enter onto the Property and remove the Encroaching 

Structure and restore the Easement upon ten (10) days’ written notice.  All costs borne by the City 

shall be payable by the Owner. 

9. Insurance.  The Owner will maintain and keep in force during the term of this Agreement 

general homeowner’s liability insurance that covers the Encroaching Structure, which will name 

the City as an additional insured.  The City may at any time request proof of such insurance by 

providing notice to the Owner, and the Owner will provide such proof within thirty (30) days of 

such notice. 

10. Default.  In the event of any default by the Owner of the terms of this Agreement, the City 

will notify the Owner of the default, after which time the Owner will have thirty (30) days to cure 

the default.  If the Owner fails to cure the default in that period of time, the City will have the right 

to terminate this Agreement at any time thereafter by providing written notice to the Owner.  The 

Owner will not have any right to cure a default under subsection “g” below, and the City will have 

the right to terminate this Agreement at any time thereafter by providing written notice to the 

Owner.  The following events will, without limitation, be deemed to be a default: 

a. Failure to allow the City access to the Easement and Encroaching Structure 

as prescribed in Section 6. 

  b. Failure to maintain the Encroaching Structure as prescribed in Section 3. 

  c. Materially altering the use of the Encroaching Structure. 

  d. Failure to obtain or maintain insurance coverage, or failure to provide the 

City proof of such coverage, as prescribed in Section 9. 

  e. Constructing, establishing, or otherwise placing new encroachments on the 

Easement without the express written permission of the City. 

  f. Failure to provide any payments or reimbursements to the City as 

contemplated by this Agreement; 

Item 12 - 5

99



Page 5 of 13 
 

g. Sale, transfer, lease, or any other conveyance of the Property or 

Encroaching Structure by the Owner to any other person/persons or entity/entities without 

first removing the Encroaching Structure and restoring the Easement to a substantially 

similar or better condition than it was in prior to the construction of the Encroaching 

Structure. 

11. Indemnification.  The Owner, and Owner’s successors and assigns, will indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless the City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors, and volunteers 

(which shall be considered a part of the term “City”) from and against any and all claims, demands, 

liability, loss, cost, damage, or expense of any nature whatsoever, including all reasonable costs 

and attorneys’ fees, made against the City on account of injury, harm, death, or damage to persons 

or property arising out of or in connection with, the maintenance, occupancy, use, repair, alteration, 

existence, location, or removal of the Encroaching Structure or the exercise of any other rights 

granted by this Agreement, and the Owner hereby assumes all liability and responsibility for the 

same. 

12. Notices.  Except for notice for emergency access to the Encroaching Structure as described 

in Section 6, which may be provided in person, telephonically, by electronic mail, or by any other 

means reasonably calculated to provide notice, any notice or other communication required or 

permitted under this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have been made either 

(1) when delivered personally to the party to whom it is directed (or any officer or agent of such 

party), or (2) upon being deposited in the United States' mail, postage prepaid, return receipt 

requested, and properly addressed to the party.  A communication will be deemed to be properly 

addressed if sent to the following addresses: 

  a. Owner:   8307 80th Drive NE,  

Marysville WA 98270 

Phone: 

Email: 

 

  b. City:  Community Development 

City of Marysville 

80 Columbia Avenue 

Marysville, WA 98270 

13. Change in Address.  A party may change the address or other contact information that they 

intend to receive notice at by first providing notice to the other party as described in Section 12.   

14. No Additional Rights.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is solely for the 

purpose of permitting the Owner to use and maintain the Encroaching Structure on the Easement 

as prescribed by this Agreement.  This Agreement does not convey any right, title, or interest in 

Item 12 - 6

100



Page 6 of 13 
 

or to the Easement nor is it meant to convey any right to use or occupy any other property or 

interest. 

15. Runs with the Land; Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement and the rights and 

obligations contained herein shall run with the land and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 

upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

16. Governing Law; Attorney’s Fees.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the 

State of Washington, with venue in Snohomish County.  In any action brought by the City to 

enforce the obligations contained herein or to terminate this Agreement, the City shall be entitled 

to recover reasonable attorney’s fees together with costs if it prevails. 

17. Amounts Due.  All amounts required to be paid by the Owner to the City shall be paid 

within 30 days after the Owner receives notice from the City of the amount due.  Such amounts, 

along with all expenses borne by the City to collect them, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 

shall become a lien on the Property, and the City will have the right to take any action to enforce 

such liens. 

18. Remedies.  In addition to the rights and remedies described herein, the City will have all 

other rights and remedies available at law or equity. 

19. Loss in Value.  The Owner will have no right to compensation from the City for any loss 

in value to the Property if and when the Encroaching Structure is damaged or removed. 

20. Survival.  The rights and obligations contained in Sections 3, 6, 8, 11, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 

19 will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

21. Severability.  Any provision of this Agreement which proves to be invalid, void or illegal 

will in no way affect, impair or invalidate any other provision of this Agreement, and the remaining 

provisions will nevertheless remain in full force and effect. 

22. No Waiver.  Failure of either party at any time to require performance of any provision of 

this Agreement will not limit such party’s right to enforce the provision, nor will any waiver of 

any breach of any provision of this Agreement constitute a waiver of any succeeding breach of the 

provision or a waiver of the provision itself. 

23. General.  This Agreement (including the attached exhibits):  (i) represents the entire 

understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter covered; (ii) supersedes all prior and 

contemporaneous oral understandings with respect to such subject matter; (iii) the captions or 

headings provided in this Agreement are for convenience only and will not be deemed to be a part 

of this Agreement; (iv) the recitals are incorporated into and shall be considered a part of this 

Agreement; (v) the attached Exhibits are incorporated into and shall be considered a part of this 

Agreement; and (vi) by signing below, each individual signatory certifies that he/she is a person 

duly qualified and authorized to bind the respective parties to this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

Item 12 - 7

101



Page 7 of 13 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the latest date 

written below. 

Approved as to form: 

 

__________________________________ 

Jon Walker, City Attorney 

 

 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE: 

 

__________________________________   _______________ 

Jon Nehring, Mayor      Date 

 

 

OWNER: 

 

__________________________________   _______________ 

Trevor P. Trueax      Date 

 

__________________________________   _______________ 

Julie A. Trueax      Date 

 

  

Item 12 - 8

102



Page 8 of 13 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  ) 

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Mayor Jon Nehring is the person who 

appeared before me, to me known to be the Mayor of the City of Marysville, and he 

acknowledged that he signed this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act 

for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

Date:  ____________________________ 

 

__________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  

State of Washington. 

 

Residing at:  ________________________ 

My commission expires:  ________________________ 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  ) 

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Trevor P. Trueax is the person who 

appeared before me, and he acknowledged that he signed this instrument and acknowledged it to 

be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

Date:  ____________________________ 

 

__________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  

State of Washington. 

 

Residing at:  ________________________ 

My commission expires:  ________________________ 

 

Item 12 - 9

103



Page 9 of 13 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  ) 

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Julie A. Trueax is the person who 

appeared before me, and she acknowledged that she signed this instrument and acknowledged it 

to be her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

Date:  ____________________________ 

 

__________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  

State of Washington. 

 

Residing at:  ________________________ 

My commission expires:  ________________________ 

  

Item 12 - 10

104



Page 10 of 13 
 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description 

LOT 42, THE HILL, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED UNDER 

AUDITOR’S FILE NO. 9802275002, RECORDS OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON. 

 

  

Item 12 - 11

105



Page 11 of 13 
 

Exhibit B 

Sewer Easement 

 

  

Item 12 - 12

106



Page 12 of 13 
 

Exhibit C 

Encroaching Structure 

 

  

Item 12 - 13

107



Page 13 of 13 
 

Exhibit D 

Sketch of the Property and Structures Thereon 

 

Item 12 - 14

108



Page 1 of 13 
 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

 
City Clerk’s Office 

City of Marysville 

1049 State Avenue 

Marysville, WA 98270 

360-363-8000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document Title: Easement Encroachment Agreement 

Grantor: The City of Marysville   

Grantee: Trevor P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax, husband and wife 

 

Abbreviated Legal Description: LOT 42, THE HILL. 

Assessor's Tax/Parcel Number: 00877600004200 

Additional Legal Description on page 10 

 

Easement Encroachment Agreement 

This Easement Encroachment Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Marysville 

(the “City”) and Trevor P. Trueax and Julie A. Trueax, husband and wife (collectively the 

“Owner”) on the _____ day of ___________, 2018. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Owner is the owner of the property commonly known as 8307 80th Drive 

NE, Marysville WA 98270, the legal description of which is attached as Exhibit A and 

incorporated into this Agreement (the “Property”); 

WHEREAS, the City has a sewer easement affecting the property as shown in the plat 

recorded under Auditor’s File Number 9802275002, the portion of which evidencing the sewer 

easement is shown in Exhibit B, which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement (the 

“Easement”); 

Item 12 - 15

109



Page 2 of 13 
 

WHEREAS, the Owner has constructed an open-air structure of approximately 512 square 

feet as shown in Exhibit C, which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement (the 

“Gazebo”); 

WHEREAS, the Gazebo is located on a portion of the Property as shown in Exhibit D, 

which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Gazebo was built over a portion of the Easement and thus encroaches on 

the Easement; 

WHEREAS, the Gazebo has a solid roof with open walls, similar to a pergola, and is 

currently used as a covered patio for outdoor recreational purposes and contains outdoor furniture 

and a fireplace; 

WHEREAS, the Gazebo was constructed without necessary building permits and does not 

meet the requirements of the City’s municipal code, including without limitation property or 

easement setback requirements; 

WHEREAS, the City will allow the Gazebo to remain on the Property and the affected 

Easement area under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Owner agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Permission Granted.  The City, in consideration of the covenants and agreements contained 

in this Agreement, to be kept and performed by the Owner, hereby grants permission to the Owner 

to encroach on the Easement for the purposes of using and maintaining the Gazebo.  The rights 

contained in this Agreement shall not apply to any other encroachments into or onto the Easement, 

existing either now or in the future. 

2. Term and Termination. 

a. Term.  The term of this Agreement will be ten (10) years from the date the 

Agreement is executed by the City. 

b. Termination.  This Agreement will terminate on any of the following 

events:  

 (i)   Expiration of the term of this Agreement;  

(ii)   Default of the terms of this Agreement and notification of 

termination as provided in Section 10. 

(iii)   The Gazebo is removed from the Easement and the affected 

Easement area is restored to a substantially similar or better condition than it was 

in prior to the construction of the Gazebo. 

3. Use; Maintenance.  All use, repairs, and maintenance of the Gazebo will be performed in 

strict compliance with this Agreement and with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 

Item 12 - 16

110



Page 3 of 13 
 

statutes, ordinances, codes, and regulations, and the City may access and inspect the Gazebo to 

ensure compliance with the same.  All costs associated with the use, maintenance, and repair of 

the Gazebo will be exclusively borne and paid for by the Owner. 

4. Change in Use Prohibited.  The Owner will use the Gazebo solely as a covered patio and 

for associated outdoor recreational purposes.  A material change in the use of the Gazebo will 

constitute a default of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10. 

5. Further Construction Prohibited.  The Owner will not expand or otherwise cause the 

Gazebo or any associated appurtenances to further infringe in or on the Easement beyond what is 

shown in Exhibit C and Exhibit D.  Expansion of the Gazebo in or on the Easement will constitute 

a default of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10. 

6. Right of Access.  The City will have the right to access the Easement and all parts of the 

Gazebo, including without limitation its interior.  Upon gaining access the City will have the right 

to make any alterations to the Gazebo and Easement, including without limitation breaking locks, 

breaching doors, removing walls or floorboards, cutting into the foundation, digging into the 

ground, and fully demolishing the Gazebo.  The City will in no way be liable to the Owner for any 

damage to the Property, Gazebo, or personal property caused by its accessing or altering the 

Easement or Gazebo.  All costs the City incurs in making alterations to the Gazebo will be the 

responsibility of the Owner, and the Owner will reimburse the City for the same.  The City will 

have the right to access the interior of the Gazebo by providing notice to the Owner according to 

the following terms: 

a. Non-Emergency Access.  The City may access the Gazebo for any reason 

upon seven (7) days’ written notice to the Owner. 

b. Emergency Access.  The City may access the Gazebo in an emergency 

situation upon twelve (12) hours’ notice to the Owner.  In the event the City is unable to 

reach the Owner after attempting to provide notice, or the Owner does not respond to the 

City within that twelve (12) hour period, the City may enter into the Gazebo without 

permission from the Owner, and the City may break any locks or breach any doors, walls, 

or floors to gain said access, and pursuant to this Section any resultant damages to the 

Property, Gazebo, or any personal property shall be borne by the Owner, and the City will 

in no way have any responsibility to make repairs or reimburse the Owner for resultant 

damages.  For the purposes of this Section, an “emergency situation” is any situation that 

the City, in its sole discretion, determines to require immediate or timely access to the 

Gazebo, including without limitation a need to repair pipes or sewer lines. 

7. Removal of Gazebo by the Owner.   

a. Upon Termination.  Upon termination of this Agreement, the Owner will 

remove the Gazebo and return the Easement to a substantially similar or better condition 

than it was in prior to the construction of the Gazebo.  The Owner will be responsible for 

all costs associated with the removal of the Gazebo and subsequent restoration, and the 

Item 12 - 17

111



Page 4 of 13 
 

City will not be responsible for any of the costs thereof.  All removal and restoration work 

as contemplated in this Section will be done to the satisfaction of the City. 

b. Prior to Conveyance.  The Owner will not sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise 

convey the Property or the Gazebo to any individual, entity, or other party without first 

removing the Gazebo. 

8. Removal of the Gazebo by the City.  If the Owner fails to remove the Gazebo when required 

by this Agreement, or if the Owner fails to restore the Easement to a substantially similar or better 

condition than it was in prior to the construction of the Gazebo, then the City may enter onto the 

Property and remove the Gazebo and restore the Easement upon ten (10) days’ written notice.  All 

costs borne by the City shall be payable by the Owner. 

9. Insurance.  The Owner will maintain and keep in force during the term of this Agreement 

general homeowner’s liability insurance that covers the Gazebo, which will name the City as an 

additional insured.  The City may at any time request proof of such insurance by providing notice 

to the Owner, and the Owner will provide such proof within thirty (30) days of such notice. 

10. Default.  In the event of any default by the Owner of the terms of this Agreement, the City 

will notify the Owner of the default, after which time the Owner will have thirty (30) days to cure 

the default.  If the Owner fails to cure the default in that period of time, the City will have the right 

to terminate this Agreement at any time thereafter by providing written notice to the Owner.  The 

Owner will not have any right to cure a default under subsection “g” below, and the City will have 

the right to terminate this Agreement at any time thereafter by providing written notice to the 

Owner.  The following events will, without limitation, be deemed to be a default: 

a. Failure to allow the City access to the Easement and Gazebo as prescribed 

in Section 6. 

  b. Failure to maintain the Gazebo as prescribed in Section 3. 

  c. Materially altering the use of the Gazebo. 

  d. Failure to obtain or maintain insurance coverage, or failure to provide the 

City proof of such coverage, as prescribed in Section 9. 

  e. Constructing, establishing, or otherwise placing new encroachments on the 

Easement without the express written permission of the City. 

  f. Failure to provide any payments or reimbursements to the City as 

contemplated by this Agreement; 

g. Sale, transfer, lease, or any other conveyance of the Property or Gazebo by 

the Owner to any other person/persons or entity/entities without first removing the Gazebo 

and restoring the Easement to a substantially similar or better condition than it was in prior 

to the construction of the Gazebo. 

11. Indemnification.  The Owner, and Owner’s successors and assigns, will indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless the City, its officials, officers, employees, agents, contractors, and volunteers 

Item 12 - 18

112



Page 5 of 13 
 

(which shall be considered a part of the term “City”) from and against any and all claims, demands, 

liability, loss, cost, damage, or expense of any nature whatsoever, including all reasonable costs 

and attorneys’ fees, made against the City on account of injury, harm, death, or damage to persons 

or property arising out of or in connection with, the maintenance, occupancy, use, repair, alteration, 

existence, location, or removal of the Gazebo or the exercise of any other rights granted by this 

Agreement, and the Owner hereby assumes all liability and responsibility for the same. 

12. Notices.  Except for notice for emergency access to the Gazebo as described in Section 6, 

which may be provided in person, telephonically, by electronic mail, or by any other means 

reasonably calculated to provide notice, any notice or other communication required or permitted 

under this Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed to have been made either (1) when 

delivered personally to the party to whom it is directed (or any officer or agent of such party), or 

(2) upon being deposited in the United States' mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, and 

properly addressed to the party.  A communication will be deemed to be properly addressed if sent 

to the following addresses: 

  a. Owner:   8307 80th Drive NE,  

Marysville WA 98270 

Phone: 

Email: 

 

  b. City:  Community Development 

City of Marysville 

80 Columbia Avenue 

Marysville, WA 98270 

13. Change in Address.  A party may change the address or other contact information that they 

intend to receive notice at by first providing notice to the other party as described in Section 12.   

14. No Additional Rights.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is solely for the 

purpose of permitting the Owner to use and maintain the Gazebo on the Easement as prescribed 

by this Agreement.  This Agreement does not convey any right, title, or interest in or to the 

Easement nor is it meant to convey any right to use or occupy any other property or interest. 

15. Runs with the Land; Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement and the rights and 

obligations contained herein shall run with the land and shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 

upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

16. Governing Law; Attorney’s Fees.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the 

State of Washington, with venue in Snohomish County.  In any action brought by the City to 

enforce the obligations contained herein or to terminate this Agreement, the City shall be entitled 

to recover reasonable attorney’s fees together with costs if it prevails. 

Item 12 - 19

113



Page 6 of 13 
 

17. Amounts Due.  All amounts required to be paid by the Owner to the City shall be paid 

within 30 days after the Owner receives notice from the City of the amount due.  Such amounts, 

along with all expenses borne by the City to collect them, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 

shall become a lien on the Property, and the City will have the right to take any action to enforce 

such liens. 

18. Remedies.  In addition to the rights and remedies described herein, the City will have all 

other rights and remedies available at law or equity. 

19. Loss in Value.  The Owner will have no right to compensation from the City for any loss 

in value to the Property if and when the Gazebo is damaged or removed. 

20. Survival.  The rights and obligations contained in Sections 3, 6, 8, 11, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 

19 will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

21. Severability.  Any provision of this Agreement which proves to be invalid, void or illegal 

will in no way affect, impair or invalidate any other provision of this Agreement, and the remaining 

provisions will nevertheless remain in full force and effect. 

22. No Waiver.  Failure of either party at any time to require performance of any provision of 

this Agreement will not limit such party’s right to enforce the provision, nor will any waiver of 

any breach of any provision of this Agreement constitute a waiver of any succeeding breach of the 

provision or a waiver of the provision itself. 

23. General.  This Agreement (including the attached exhibits):  (i) represents the entire 

understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter covered; (ii) supersedes all prior and 

contemporaneous oral understandings with respect to such subject matter; (iii) the captions or 

headings provided in this Agreement are for convenience only and will not be deemed to be a part 

of this Agreement; (iv) the recitals are incorporated into and shall be considered a part of this 

Agreement; (v) the attached Exhibits are incorporated into and shall be considered a part of this 

Agreement; and (vi) by signing below, each individual signatory certifies that he/she is a person 

duly qualified and authorized to bind the respective parties to this Agreement. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

Item 12 - 20

114



Page 7 of 13 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the latest date 

written below. 

Approved as to form: 

 

__________________________________ 

Jon Walker, City Attorney 

 

 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE: 

 

__________________________________   _______________ 

Jon Nehring, Mayor      Date 

 

 

OWNER: 

 

__________________________________   _______________ 

Trevor P. Trueax      Date 

 

__________________________________   _______________ 

Julie A. Trueax      Date 

 

  

Item 12 - 21

115



Page 8 of 13 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  ) 

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Mayor Jon Nehring is the person who 

appeared before me, to me known to be the Mayor of the City of Marysville, and he 

acknowledged that he signed this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act 

for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

Date:  ____________________________ 

 

__________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  

State of Washington. 

 

Residing at:  ________________________ 

My commission expires:  ________________________ 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  ) 

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Trevor P. Trueax is the person who 

appeared before me, and he acknowledged that he signed this instrument and acknowledged it to 

be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

Date:  ____________________________ 

 

__________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  

State of Washington. 

 

Residing at:  ________________________ 

My commission expires:  ________________________ 

 

Item 12 - 22

116



Page 9 of 13 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 

     ) 

COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  ) 

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Julie A. Trueax is the person who 

appeared before me, and she acknowledged that she signed this instrument and acknowledged it 

to be her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in this instrument. 

 

Date:  ____________________________ 

 

__________________________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  

State of Washington. 

 

Residing at:  ________________________ 

My commission expires:  ________________________ 

  

Item 12 - 23

117



Page 10 of 13 
 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description 

LOT 42, THE HILL, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED UNDER 

AUDITOR’S FILE NO. 9802275002, RECORDS OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON. 

 

  

Item 12 - 24

118



Page 11 of 13 
 

Exhibit B 

Sewer Easement 

 

  

Item 12 - 25

119



Page 12 of 13 
 

Exhibit C 

Gazebo 

  

Item 12 - 26

120



Page 13 of 13 
 

Exhibit D 

Sketch of the Property and Structures Thereon 

 

Item 12 - 27

121


	Agenda
	1
	Item 1
	9
	Item 9
	CC 052918 DRAFT.pdf
	Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2018.


	10
	Item 10
	Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2018.

	11
	Item 11
	2
	Item 2
	3
	Item 3
	4
	Item 4
	AB 2018 change to Purchasing Resolution
	MSVL Purchasing Resolution yr2018 - adding time extension

	5
	Item 5
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  6/25/18

	6
	Item 6
	7
	Item 7
	8
	Item 8
	12
	Item 12
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018




